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The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities,

(R A A BN}

famounts expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

THARAFANBE_FRLF=-A=+—BLA
EnFERZREE - - BAM  BARRLRER -

share capital and results of the Group for the five years ended

31st March 2007.

) 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Financials (§ Million) MBEAE (F87T)
Total assets BAE 466 473 460 631 749
Total liabitities BAf 102 89 82 220 268
Minority interests B BLE i 0.19 0.17 0.18 0.18 0.20
Shareholders” equity B R g 364 384 378 411 481
Share capital o 171 17 171 171 190

(No. of shares issued - in Million) (SRR (5H))
Revenue W% 675 553 585 734 752
Profit/{loss) attributable to equity ERARERE ARG

holders of the Company A (&R (23) 23 2 37 34
Per Share Basis (§) SHRHHAGL
Earnings/(loss) &¥,/ (1) {0.13) 0.13 0.01 0.22 0.19
Dividends B 8 - 0.05 0.02 0.08 0.07
Met asset value (at bock value) EEFEEEEE) 2.2 2.24 2.21 2.40 2.53
- R

2007 Segment revenue 2007 Segment results
2007 £ o 8 i & 20079 & 2 ik
66% .-
’ 33%
. Food and beverages Investments in securities Computer and information communication technology
3 BHERE B R EMBAE

o /

(Riﬁﬁiﬁﬂ

B 5 B & 8 CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS lIMITED)




Financial Summary

B E

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 = BB L £

]
J

(amounts expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)  (HiFETHZABE)

\

-
REVENUE I 2% EARNINGS/(LOSS) BE/ (HFRIBEEES
. AND DIVIDENDS
{3 Million) (T H8 ) (PER SHARE BASIS) (S EHXK)
($3(T)

/0}[7 Yars . (a1 012

04| ] s Earnings/(Loss) | ., | (N O.13

BF/ (85D Crmred 805
ll s 05 'E}M(;,oz
06| [ e D oc | "I 0 2
Dividend ——T

) I e d,) 0m—ms
PROFIT/(LOSS)} ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

FonBERE ARG RE

R (Ea)

{$ Mmillion} (B R T) (3 Mmillion) (EHE )

(03) g (o3)[ ] 4

0a| [ ]2 oa|] ] s

o5 ]2 05| ] 318

06| [ JE 06| ~Jmn

A
() I Lo7) st
\.
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Central, Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre
8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay

Heng Kong

Telephone: {852) 2318 1818

Facsimile: (852) 2757 5138

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARS

Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke, HM 08, Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRARS AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Standard Registrars Limited
26th Floor, Teshbury Centre
28 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kang Limited
Stock Code: 508

ADR DEPOSITARY BANK
The Bank of New York

American Depositary Receipts

101 Barclay Street, 22nd Floor West
New York, NY 10286, USA

WEBSITE

http://www . chevalier.com

FTESEME
HE

NAESERENR
Ht@gaedHZ+Z8
WEE ¢ (852) 23181818
81 © (852) 2757 5138

LA %~
FTEBRMDELE
Butterfield Fund Services {Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road
Pembroke, HM 08, Bermuda
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BRESELERLA
BEEFNER_TNAK
EHREPOLZ TN
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EERATHRER AT

B in S - 508

BB ESFEE RT
The Bank of New York

American Depositary Receipts

101 Barclay Street, 22nd Floor West
New York, NY 10286, USA
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Dr Chow Yei Ching B8+

The Group's revenue for the year increased by 2.4% to HK$752
million as a whole and 38% to HK$260 million for continuing
operations only. Profit for the year as a whole declined 8.9% to
HK$33.7 million as a result of setbacks from the discontinued
operations and initial losses from food and beverage in the

Mainland China operations.

During the year under review, the Group underwent substantial
business transformation. §ubsequent to the acquisition of Pacific
Coffee Company in May 2005, we expanded our lifestyle food
and beverage business by acquiring 49% of Igor's Group of
Restaurants in January 2007. Iger's Group of Restaurants is one of
the fastest growing food and beverage management groups
operating western lifestyle specialty restaurants and bars in Hong
Kong. The acquisition has given a golden opportunity for the Group
to strengthen its position in the food and beverage industry, obtain

economies of scale and broaden its income stream,

On behalff of the Board of Directors (the
“Board”) of Chevalier Pacific Holdings
Limited, | am pleased to report that the
Group continued to achieve healthy results
for the year ended 31st March 2007.

AABRRELTZHERBRARE
SR((EEFIIMALMH  FEENE
E_REALF=HA=T—BHILFEH
B ERENES -

EREMOFEFERBEA2ABERBIS2ERL - W
BEPORORBAERIBREEN26ER - R
ETEEANEERFARACE  NERTE
RILBERRERSRARKS BERTE L
T8 9%EHM3,370HT -

MREBEFN - AEMETHAREAL - =
FEEF A A EMPadfic Coffee Companyfk - &
LABR_FR+E—RERWMIgorsTMER
BEAI%IFER BRI RER o 1gorsal fRE B
LEREHEBERDEENTREREDR Y —
TEEARHECRERAR - RIEWELASR
MigERSWE  UEEEETRERNNMLE -
FEBRMEENRERERARARR -

Cﬁ + F B E KB B M L A CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED)
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Near to the financial year end, the Group underwent another
significant transformation. To align its business strategy, the Group
decided to dispose of its Computer and Information Communication
Technology business to its parent company, Chevalier International
Holdings Limited (“CIHL"), aliowing it to focus on developing the
fast growing food and beverage business. We strongly believe this

move will contribute favourable returns for shareholders.

The Group is highly optimistic about its food and beverage business
braced by improving spending sentiment riding on strong economic
growth, the active property and stock markets in Hong Kong and
the region, the flourishing coffee drinking culture and grewing
demand for new dining experiences ameong consumers in Hong
Kong and the Mainland China. To tap the growing market, the
Group will continue to expand the Pacific Coffee outlet network
in the Mainland China. As announced recently, the Group has
entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with a Chinese party
regarding possible co-operation in expanding Pacific Coffee in the
Mainland China. The Group also intends to speed up development
of the Mainland China market by co-operating or setting up joint
ventures with various parties and leveraging their connection to

secure appropriate locations for opening new outlets.

Apart from growing the business in Mainland China, the Group
will actively explore business prospects in the Asia Pacific region.
Such initiatives included pursuit of licensing opportunities and
finding tocal partners to accelerate expansion of our outlet network

in the region.

In recent years, the Group has been active in effecting acquisitions
to expand its business. Having successfully diversified into the
growing lifestyle restaurants market, the Group is more apt to
weather future uncertainties which may affect its performance.
We see a lot of chalienges in expanding our business and the
need for us to think innovatively in resolving problems and
overcoming those challenges. The management believes that the
Group has a workforce that can thrive amid challenges and work

together to create great results.

SRAMIMEFERET T A - HEARKEER
HE - REGRERE - SREAEHETHER
AMENMBEEEFBAHTERAEFTEDR
BI{[HETER]  HEIRRABBERHNERYE
B ZzRDRELESNARATRTRDH -

EREHREIHESHAEHEE  DERRE
TIFRREFRHBER  WEFARPEAAREE
FRBOM I EEERETEHARGEHERE
B O ZAMUAEHEBARIESSER AEE
MIREDERFTROEE - NEMBHARRT
Pacific Coffee e R R M EM B4 - HMTH
- XAEA—FRAMBHTIESR - B
% & i # Pacific Coffee R P BRI EE -
ERETHTEREZERBHEFRRIAEDR
EAth B R E ARG - 3B e B e
RER BRSNS -

BEERTEAMNEBN  FREOARAES
BROTAERNRHEH ARERELQEEEER
RFEEEBRRNECDRAEEBHUNMRER
FRMEMPRE NN EHAS -

ME - FREMEETURBEUEREE - DR
RERGERMENBUTERIAEEERE
HRugd A0 THARNER - BRRAKHE
BEBMERPHAUNEYEAKE 20
UBIFHADEBARBREREE - EEFENTRE
TEMNBIRWMERY @ L& NEIEES -

(CHEVAUER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED B + Z & B 8 | B 2 %1)
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In April 2007, Mr P X Fung resigned from the position of Managing
Director of the Company. | would like to take this opportunity to
express our hearty thanks to Mr Fung for his great contribution in
helping the Group build a solid foundation for its food and
beverage business. To Mr Oscar Chow who was appointed as
Managing Director of the Company, the Beard has fulf confidence
that he will, as he has over the years, bring fresh ideas to foster
development of the Group’s business.

To strengthen our management capability, the Group afso appointed
Mr Robert Chang as Executive Director in May 2007. Mr Chang's
strong experience in product promotion will benefit the Group's
business as a whole.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank the management and all our staff for their commitment to
the Group. Their great effort, professionalism and diligence have
contributed to the Group's success for the year.

HoSR-EMA BEARLER=LCAER
MO AAREKREEERNGHTRME
VEEWSRESIRTENE BB R H
B -HRENMAENTEFREEEABELET
PHEAMAZFROXBERSH - AFRURE
HAUFFE  NEEFLENEHEE -

AIMEERRS  ARBFR_FFLFRAZ
ERERAEARITHEY  -REERERERT
AOUEEREEMNR TN BHERER -

FAERRBEEAREBEGHEERR2MAT
HEAMEAENERES  SHNSIRTER
EREFARNGRATREERERLRA -
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FOOD AND BEVERAGES

Revenue of the food and beverage segment improved by 39.3%
to HK$250 million, but segment results decreased 20.7% to
HK$14.9 million as a result of initial set up losses of about HK$11
million incurred by the Mainland China Pacific Coffee and bakery
operations. In Hong Keng, the business reported full-year robust
sales growth of 16.5% and correspondingly enhanced profit
contribution thanks to the increasing popularity of the coffee
drinking culture and strong economic growth in Hong Kong.

Pacific Coffee

Pacific Coffee’s mission of serving “The Perfect Cup” to customers
is not just about the quality of the beverage, but also applies to its
service, the location of its outlets and store environment. Echoing
our mission, our stores provide customers with a selection of
relaxing music, warm lighting, couches and sofas, newspapers and
other leisure reading materials, and space for quiet enjoyment of

coffee or socializing.

We see the location of our restaurants as another crucial factor
for the long-term success of our food and beverage business. Qur
outlets are all located in or near key business districts in our
different markets. The total number of Pacific Coffee outlets
increased from 52 last year to 69 at the financial year-end with 9
stores increased in Hong Kong, 7 in Mainland China, and 1 in
Singapere.

Hong Kong Operation
In Hong Kong, as of financial year-end, there are a total of 51
Pacific Coffee shops with areas ranging up to 4,400 sq. ft.

During the year, the Group implemented a host of measures to0
promote business efficiency such as implementing a store-wide
electronic point-of-sales system that supports real-time data
analysis. This is a useful tool for the management to analyse
customer needs and consumption patterns for quick tailoring of
marketing strategy in response to market demands.

Z ]

SO TERNEEINIREEE 25T -
# Pacific Coffee P E R E) EHBEARREE
HomtFEERPRENBERBERRRER -
MEHBRKAS  EMECEEHROES
11008 7T SREEBCRENTHR207T%ER
14908 - BAFE - TRH O HBIAOU%
YiEREMOERER  BERBRERNRFH
M R5E16.5% « ARATEAR -

Pacific Coffee

Pacific CoffeetI B R RERAMERHKITEN
gE| - EFEMAAUCINBREE  ERERE -
EReEPERREAY - ARABREARE - &
AEHEMTRASRAEE  THNEX 8
HNRBERDPHELN  SAERNBEEEMD
- UEBENLARBEAEM -

FERUTASMAIHEBERADNGRNINS
—HRAE - EEHHIAABESETANE
EmiE - BEAER « Pacific CoffeeMEE - P
EoeRging g EoR - IBMRIRS/E - /5
B IFRE T S2MENE M EFEMN6IR -

FHER
REHREE - &% AR E510 Pacific Coffeef§
- HPEREEE4LI00EAR -

g RREHTT -RIEEUEE RSN
fimERB rHERARHDEEIASN - LT
ARBEMANATBRERERHRERX - &M
i3 4 SE 60 & T R SR HE IRTER o

(ﬁ T E o ERERLF CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOQLDINGS LIMITED.)
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During the year, same store sales in Hong Kong was maintained at
approximately 7%, braced by improved promotions and a better
understanding of customers’ preferences based on market research.
Through mystery shopper programs, the Group was able to identify
functional areas that needed improvement and reinforce its training
schemes and training facilities accordingly. Additionally, store
environments of a number of stores incleding decoration and
equipment were upgraded to further improve our services angd
product quality to customers. Our efforts to make “the Perfect
Cup” are appreciated.

Mainland China Operation

At present, we have 8 stores in Mainland China. With only a few
stores each in Beijing and Shanghai, the Group has more to achieve
in economy of scale in terms of supply and corporate expenses.
That plus also the high initial costing structure of the Mainland
China operaticn are the reasons for the loss incurred by the business
this financial year. Based on last year’s experience in the Mainland
China market, we will adjust our strategy 1o focus on selecting
and opening new stores at prime locations.

Singapore Operation

One new store was added in Singapore during the year to bring
the total number of stores to 9. The averall performance of the
stores improved but the operation in the market did not expand as
quickly as its counterparts in Hong Kong and the Mainland China,
the reason being the Singapore market is almost saturated with a
few key dominant players, making it difficult for the Group to

achieve significant organic growth over a short pericd of time.

At 31st March 2007, Pacific Coffee had 534 employees in Hong
Kong, the Mainland China and Singapore.

lgor's

Having completed the acquisition of 49% stake in Igor's Group,
the holding company of which is Sinochina Enterprises Limited
(“SEL"), on 31st January 2007, the Group has a strengthened
foed and beverage business for capturing the fast growing and
lucrative western lifestyle food and beverage market in Asia. The
two-month profit contribution from Igors Group booked for the
year under review was approximately HK$1 million.

FR - EFENREHERBRNTNNARE - BR
BNEGREATBREUTRBEEESHER -
BREMPRATIHD - 2EBENREEFSE
BHES c fEmies A T REMERE - i -
FRETEASMEEOEE LRE - KIEAR
BRKFREMHE -ZN@MABETRHIZTEN
GIEZHFEMENBHRARTERE -

o A R

A AHRERPEAXNBHKEENRIEM - g
ERE CERBESREEEEEH  BitER
MEFHERERATATRBREEBRSE -
REERTFERMRENNINIRERST - 2
TEREEBREMHRFERSER - RREF
RAMTENERE  TRERBERNE i
REEESHEBAMEHNE -

HMERE

ER - FRERHREEE-RHHE - TESA
BREAM - -BEEFHNBBRARABHYE £
THERPEERPEANRHRAERE - B E
REARFMETECEBFTRCRBEWMER
B TRELHAN - SHAREBHNERNER
BREER-

BR-BFLEZA=+—B - Pacific Coffee ¥ &
B -rBEAREFNEREHSHERT -

Igor's

KRoBBRLF—A=Z+ BT EBIgorsBRE
B MM 49%4E 2 & - H# B 28 A Sinochina
Enterprises Limited ([SEL]) + REE SR IIELER
BHED LEETHEEBERARBERENE
ABNERTRABERNEH - REAFEA - Igor's
EHRERERDATATDSRMMAA - AFHES
100H TR I B IR -

(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED H £+ T Z 2 B 7 B 2 55)
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Igor's Group opened its first restaurant in 1998. Today, it has 26
restaurants operation including “Wildfire”, "The Boathouse”,
"Stormies Crab Shack™ and “Café de Paris” in varicus prime dining
destinations such as Lan Kwai Fong, Soho, Stanley, Discovery Bay
and Knutsford Terrace. Igor's restaurants offer a wide variety of
international cuisines, ranging from traditional French to casual
counter food. In addition, Igor’s also operates bars and restaurants
namely “Stormies”, "La Bodega”, “Marlin”, “The Keg”, “The
Cavern”, "Swindlers", "Big Ernies” and "Typhoon” in premier
entertainment districts such as Lan Kwai Fong and Wanchai. These
restaurants have resident bands to offer a repertoire of live music

entertainment to customers.

The Group believes it is the reputation of its restaurant operation
for quality menus, creative presentations of carefully prepared food
and extensive wine selection that explains the business’ position
as one of the fastest growing western restaurant chains in Hong
Kong. It also sees unigue decor as essential in creating an enjoyable

dining experience for customers.

Other Developments

Hong Kong

To assure food quality and enhance operational efficiency and
support future growth of the business, we have set up a 10,000
sq ft. central kitchen in Hong Kong, which will be operated by the
Igor’s team.

Mainland China

The Group set up a bakery operation named “Plece of Cake” in
Beijing during the financial year, targeting to open shops that sell
high-class cakes and breads, as well as provide wholesale service
to corporate customers like hotels. This bakery operation will also
support our Pacific Coffee operation in Beijing, helping to improve
both the quality and cost of food supplies.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Contributions from investments in securities increased remarkably
to HK$17 million, attributable to the Group's professional
management team implementing proven strategies to achieve
satisfactory returns from a diversified investment portfolio.
Anticipating continuous strong economic growth for Hong Kong
and Mainland China and a thriving investment market in the coming
year, the Group will continue to manage its securities and
investment portfolio with prudence to assure as well as enhance
yields,

gorsRREERAMMB—ANANFRREHEE -
ARARHE26HMAR RELHMES BR
E-F3 - ORARELIHISTEES AN
[Wildfire] - [The Boathousel * [Stormies Crab
Shack] E [Café de Paris] « Ml T EMETIRHEE
BXEABER  AORAMNZEXEHERE—R
A& e lboh - IgorsTFRE B RE M B MM
ERATERCERSEMRENTRECREN
[Stormies) -~ [La Bodegal * [Marlin] - [The
Kegl - [The Cavern] + [Swindlers] - [Big Ernies]
E [Typhoon] <«

FREAEERBFARKEERE BUERD
BEARREIOZERERE  HXBEAM
AERURBAROANEHERZ — - 5
ARBNREBEHARTRAFENERNARITER
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&
ARFAKREERRBHESRRUTSRAKER
R OAREDHREFBESI—EDME10,000F
TRMPREE - WHAIgorsEiE -

& B Ay i
FRERMBEEANELERARAEERGET] MR
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re 77 XA
ARARAEEREENOEAS L ERAHES M
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FLAZEE I J00MT - EXFREPEREHN
ARBN2LARERT -  FHEAMBTFHR
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RigElEs  HRAREDH -
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COMPUTER AND INFORMATION
COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY

Revenue of the computer and information communication
technology segment dropped by 10% to HK$492 million. While
the segment results decreased 40% to HK$11 millian, its
performance encountered setbacks affecting growth in the first
half year and remained steady in the second half year, as a result
of the delayed introduction of a new operating system and recall
of defective notebook computer batteries, However, the network
solutions division continued to offer comprehensive
telecommunication and information technology (“1T") solutions that

address clients' particular technical reguirements,

Taking into consideration the satisfactory track record of Pacific
Coffee and Igor's Group, the Group intends to continue to explore
investment opportunities in food and beverage segment in Hong
Kong and neighbouring regions. After the year end, the Group
disposed of its IT business to its parent company, CIHL, after which
the economic benefits from the IT business no longer belong to
the Group. The proceeds from the disposal will be used to finance
the development of the food and beverage business.

B R A MBI

EHEEAMBANRRENUR TRIO%ERES
49287  MAHEHNTHRO%BEEEI00H
e HEREEHHNEHEEERRFIREN
DIWHRREED  ZEBNRARLEFHRAE
EHER AMEBRTEFCGSET - 88
FRHMAGARERCEMERREARNES
BAR LOAEFPOFRFERHESR -

182 B Pacific CoffeeRigorsS B R &M MEE
25 AR cEFERfAnEnes
RENREAY -FRFEREE FEEMHER
HBEEETROAHE BN HAMSEER
kRS ENEBERSETHREAMKAE - 2R
HEMEEREABARIRERERARKRE -
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SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND FINANCIAL
RATIOS

As at 31st March, 2007, the Group’s total net asset attributable to
equity holders of the Company amounted to HK$481 million (2006:
HK$411 millien), an increase of HK$70 million or 17% when

compared with 2006.

Total debt to equity ratio was 20.4% (2006: 24.6%) and net debt
to equity ratio was nil (2006: Nil}, which are expressed as a
percentage of bank and other borrowings, and net barrowings
respectively, over the total net asset of HK$481 million {2006:
HK$411 million).

BORROWINGS

At the balance sheet date, the Group's bank and other borrowings
amounted to HK$98 million (2006: HK$101 million}. Cash and
deposit at bank including structured deposits amounted to HK$168
million {(2006: HK%122 million) and there are no net borrowings
for the two years. The increase of cash and deposit at bank was
matinly attributable to the net proceeds of HK$44.6 million from
the share placement of 18.8 million new shares in September,
2006. Subsequent to the balance sheet date in May, 2007, further
share placement of 25.4 million new shares were issued to raise
fund of HK$91.6 million. The total proceeds from the two
placements are aggregated for the expansion of food and beverage
and general working capital of the Group.

Finance costs for the year amounted to HK$5.1 million (2006:
HK$3.9 million}, an increase of HK$1.2 million as compared with
2006. The increase is due to the increased interest rates and full
year impact (2006: 10 months) of banking loans used to finance
mainly the acquisition of Pacific Coffee.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

At 31st March 2007, certain properties with an aggregate carrying
value of HK$8,362,000 (2006: HK$7,605,000) were mortgaged to
secure general banking facilities granted to an overseas subsidiary.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has provided guarantees to support banking facilities
of up to HK$155,415,000 (2006: HK$102,900,000) granted to

wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENT

At 31st March 2007, the Group has committed to acquire the
remaining 51% of the issued share capital of its associate company,
SEL from Sinochina Pacific Limited, an independent third party.
After that acquisition, SEL will become wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group. The consideration is based on the forthcoming results
performance of SEL and its subsidiaries and associates for the year
ending 31st December 2008. The aggregate consideration including
the purchase price paid for the 49% issued share capital of SEL
shall not exceed HK$200 million,

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and
financial management. To achieve better risk contro! and minimise
cost of funds, the Group’s treasury activities are centralised. Cash
is generally placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in
Hong Kong or US deliars. The Group’s liquidity and financing
requirements are frequently reviewed. In anticipating new
investments or maturity of bank loans, the Group will consider

new financing while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.

B AR

R-Z2BLE-A=+-0 ARBCEER—
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Particulars of major properties held by the Group as investment

properties/properties for own use are as follows:

Location

ok

Thailand
2E

No., 540 Bamrungmuang Read,
Debsirin Sub-district,
Pomprab District,

Bangkok Metropolis
(RS ame iR AN

The Mainland China
FEAE

Units 4, 5, 6 and 7 of 18th Floor,
Dongshan Plaza,
Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province

B R A BN T L B i
+AEm -7 AREE

Uniis B and F, 18th Flcor,
Kam Lai Square, Shanghai
FEEBRGT NEBRIE

Hong Kong
BB

23rd Floor, No. 88 Lockhart Road,

Wanchai

AFBREBEATNAR =2

Usage

Rz

Office and showroom
WoERBENE

Office for rental

HAMRAE

Staff quarters
=

Service centre

His b

Approximate
gross

floor area
AEEE
Ml

sq.ft.
FER

21,300

7,200

1,800

2,010

Lease term

ROFH

Freehold
kAR

Medium

T

Long
£ 1

Medium

& i

AEBEERBEVE/BRAVREFIINOT

Group's

interest

B M HE

HE i
%
B ®

100

100

100

100

(ressensam

@ B CHEVALIER
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that
they are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’
confidence and maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews
its corporate governance practices from time to time in order to
meet the rising expectations of stakeholders and comply with the
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfil its

commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the "CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the ~Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) came into effect on 1st January,
2005. The CG Code sets out two levels of corporate governance
practices namely, mandatory code provisions that a listed company
must comply with or explain its non-compliance, and recommended
best practices that a listed company is encouraged to comply with
but need not disclose in the case of non-compliance. The Company
is in compliance with the mandatory code provisions of the CG
Code except for certain areas of non-compliance discussed later in

this report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The directars, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Comgpany and its shareholders. The Board sets the Group’s cverall
objectives and strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and
financial performance and reviews the corporate governance
standard of the Company. It also decides on matters such as annual
and interim results, majar transactions, director appointments or
re-appointment, and dividend and accounting policies. Biographical
details of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this
report are set out on pages 37 to 40,

HHEARIARRATNRRETARARBRE
BRENEE  TEEHHRERREGRRES
HECNBIRENEEEREE - RTEIR
DAREBHBREHCRESRRKFETEEA
MERZMFAAERENERER UEAEH
EQHETRECRERNAR HEGTHR
SRENTREERS -

BERABMAXSHRARDRA(MEAD(ESFLTR
ADCrETARAUADHBTOFHEZ(EEEAEHR
A (TEXEATRDER-_FFAF—A—B
£ DEEETUITARBARALRERAT
Bl - 25 ARG — EWDESMERRT
RWERER T EXNBAELREE: REg#H
BEER - BREWQFAMUNATERRER
FREERAMIR - BRTREREIHEANRRLE
REREERRAN  ZLREBTEETATAFMN
2 Il =7 RU R 3T -

E5E

BEORARAI2NENRHAIRENAREN
A -MERERE - BREJNIAFR - Fe
AAMELULRARERROHEBERANERIRT
B -HHENUASWMIEBERNTE  RE
ENSGEANEMAREARNE -2 RA - LA
FRBZEHELERT - HERTRAREEHD
BIRE ATOE2FERTHER EAXS -
EFREIzAR  YRESREATERE R
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BOARD OF D|RECTORS {continued)

The Board comprises & Executive Directors and 3 Independent Non-
Executive Directors. The full Board met five times during the year
under review, The attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings
and the Board Committees Meetings is set out in the table below:

Directors

HIE

Executive Directors

HITHEF

EFTwm
ERRa~ERARERE 2B FRTRTA
BoEBREAKESTEAAR SHEEH
EBERNEEEAOARNUBERNT

Meetings Attended/Held

BHME/RITAH
Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee

¥ExhR gzEOe FHEO®

Dr Chow Yei Ching (Chairman) JE R0 I8 & (/%) 4/5

Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar (Managing Director)

BBEELEE (BHAMLE) 4/5 i1
Mr Kuok Hoi Sang 58 £ 5% & 5/5

Mr Kan Ka Hon fi 28 & & 5/5

Miss Lily Chaw B#i Fi/) 8 5/5

Mr Chang Wan Lung, Robert {appointed on 21st May, 2007) Not Applicable

ROMAEE(R-_EFLERA -+ OB EL A

Mr Fung Pak Kwan (resigned as Managing Director on 1st April, 2007) a/5 11
BEeNisE (R-FFEFOA-HHFHERLE)

Independent Non-Executive Directors B FE#HiTEH

Mr Shinichi Yonehara 3 B — & 4 5/5 2/2 171
Mr Wu King Cheong 8§ & £ & 5/5 2/2 11
Mr Kwong Man Sing B X E x4 5/5 2/2 11

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
relationships with each cother save for that Dr Chow is the father
of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Miss Lily Chow. Each of the
independent Non-Executive Directors has confirmed in writing his
independence to the Company pursuant to Rute 3.13 of the Listing

Rules.

RATHBRTRESEEAERAFMPEZ XK
- BRHEHNBZMBESMK - 2K RBm
HME 2 BUFATHECIRE LARAE
BBMERECHA B ATEEER -
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Since the Board is involved in the appointment of new Directors,
the Company has not established a Nomination Committee. The
Board will take into consideration criteria such as expertise,
experience, integrity and commitment when considering new
director appointments. All candidates must also meet the standards
as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate
who is to be appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director
should also meet the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

In accordance with the Bye-lLaws of the Company, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-electicn at annual general
mestings of the Company. New Directors appointed by the Board
during the year are required to retire and submit themselves for
re-election at the annual general meeting or general meeting
immediately following their appointments. Further, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors, or, if their number is
not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third are required to retire fraom office by rotation and
no later than the third annual general meeting since the last re-
election or appointment of such Director. Currently, all Independent

Non-Executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term.

Appeintment and resignation of Executive Directors were considered
at two separate Executive Committee meetings of the Company
on 29th March, 2007 and 21st May, 2007 with the attendance of
Dr Chow Yei Ching and Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar in both

meetings.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The CG Code provision stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same person. The Chairman of the Company is
Dr Chow Yei Ching and the Managing Director is Mr Chow Vee
Tsung, Oscar (appointed on 1st April, 2007 after the resignation
of Mr Fung Pak Kwan on the same date). The role of the Chairman
is separate from that of the Managing Directer. The Chairman is
responsible for overseeing the functioning of the Board while the
Managing Director is responsible for managing the Group’s
businesses.

EECERENRER

AERMERSEATENET BTN EES
RYBAERG - EREHHEDN  HEASE
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iy
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HEREABRTRAEZNBRBREBTIRES
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EERETHR=-EZRREF XS LRT-R
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-

CR T ZEERAM D T CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED)




22

Corporate Governance Report

CEREAREE

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 — 2@+t 4 ﬁEJ

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1998 with written terms
of reference and Mr Kwong Man 5ing, an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company, is the Chairman of the
committee, He is a qualified accountant with extensive experience
in financial reporting and controls. Other members include alt other
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr Shinichi Yonehara
and Mr Wu King Cheong. The Audit Committee is responsible for
the appointment of external auditors, review of the Group’s
financial information and oversight of the Group's financial
reporting system, internal contro! procedures and risk management
frameworks. It is also responsible for reviewing the interim and
final results of the Group prior to recemmending them to the
Board for approval. Its terms of reference are accessible on the

Company’s website, http://www.chevalier.com,

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31st March, 2007, At the meetings, it reviewed the connected
transactions, the interim accounts for the six months ended 3Cth
September, 2006 and last year's final results for the year ended
31st March, 2006, and has reviewed with Management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed the auditing, internal controls, financial reporting matters
and risk management systems of the Group. The final results for
the year ended 31st March, 2007 were reviewed by the Audit
Committee in its meeting held on 16th July, 2007.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 10th March,
2005 with written terms of reference. Mr Wu King Cheong was
the Chairman of the committee. Other members of the committee
include Messrs Shinichi Yonehara, Kwong Man Sing and Chow
Vee Tsung, Oscar. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
reviewing and determining the compensation and benefits of the
Directors and senior management of the Company. Its terms of
reference are accessible on the Company’'s website,

http:/fwww.chevalier.com.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting during the year ended
31st March, 2007 to review the remuneration packages paid to
Directors and Senior Management for the year ended 31st March,
2007.

BExLEg
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
gperations of the Group's business to an Executive Committee
which was established in 1989. Members of the Executive
Committee comprise 6 Executive Directors, namely Or Chow Yei
Ching, Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Mr Kuok Hoi Sang, Mr Kan Ka
Hon, Miss Lily Chow and Mr Chang Wan Lung, Robert.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. During the year,
the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control system, covering its financial, operational,
compliance control and risk management functions for interna!
controls. The Group’s system of internal control includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority, and is designed to
help the Group achieve its business objectives, safeguard its assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The system is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the

achievement of the Greup’s business objectives.

The Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitering
the internal control of the Group and reports directly to the
Chairman. It has unrestricted access to review all aspects of the
Group's activities and internal controls. It also conducts special
audits of areas of concern identified by Management or the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Department adopts risk and control-
based audit approach. All audit reports are circulated to the Audit
Committee and key management. The Internal Audit Department
is also responsible for following up the implementation of
recommendations and corrective actions. The Audit Committee
has free and direct access to the Head of Internal Audit Department

without reference to the Chairman or Management.
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DIRECTORS" AND AUDITORS'
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 315t March,
2007 on a going concern basis,

The Auditors of the Company acknowledge their reporting
responsibilities in the auditors’ report on the financial statements
for the year ended 31st March, 2007 as set out in the Auditor’s
Report on page 45 to 46.

AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2007, the fees paid/
payable to the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services

to the Group were as follows;

Audit services BEBRE
Non-audit services FEBRK

(i) Tax services (i HER®
(i) Other services (i Hilkig

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies {the "Mode! Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following a specific
enquiry, each of the Directors confirmed that he/she has complied

with the Model Code throughout the year.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to being a successful and responsible
corporate citizen. As such, we are committed not only to delivering
quality products and services to our customers and strong and
sustained financial performance to our shareholders. We are also
committed to ¢reating a positive impact in the communities where
we conduct business. We aim to achieve this by, amengst others,
suppart charitable organisations and causes; by ensuring that the
workers producing our products are treated with fairness and
respect; and at all times achieving our goals through

environmentally friendly means,
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INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Group’s senior management maintains close communications
with investors, analysts, fund managers and the media by various
channels including individual interviews and meetings. The Group
also responds promptly to request for information and queries
from the investors.

The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or Management directly.

The Company provides extensive information of the Group timely
to the shareholders and the public through the publication of
interim and annual reports, circulars, notices and announcements.
The financial and other information relating to the Group is
disclosed on the Company's website at http://www.chevalier.com.
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The Directors present to shareholders their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company and of the
Group for the year ended 31st March, 2007.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME
On 4th May, 2007, the Company changed its English name to

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited and the Chinese name "X 42
AR B B 2 =17 has been adopted for identification purpose.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates
are shown on note 43 and note 20 to the financial statements

respectively.

The Group's revenue and results for the year ended 31st March,
2007 analysed by business and geographical segments are set out

in note 33 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2007 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 47. An
interim dividend of HK2.5 cents per share was paid on Tuesday,
9th January, 2007. The Directors now recommend the payment of
a final dividend of HK4 cents per share.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders
entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on Wednesday, 29th August, 2007, the
Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
23rd August, 2007 to Wednesday, 29th August, 2007, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected.
To qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Branch Share Registrars in Hong Kong,
Standard Registrars Limited of 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:00
p.m. on Wednesday, 22nd August, 2007.

SHARE CAPITAL

Maovements in the Company's share capital during the year are set
out in note 30 to the financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the share option scheme to subscribe for shares in
the Company during the year are set out in note 39 to the financial

statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves during the year are set out on pages 105
and 106 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves as at 31st March, 2007 are set out in note
31.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in invesiment properties during the year are set out in

note 15 to the financial statements,

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movementis in property, plant and equipment during the year are
set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
315t March 2007 are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group is shown on pages 3 and 4.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest suppliers accounted for 75% of the Group’s
purchases for the year whereas the five largest customers accounted
for 24% of the Group's revenue for the year. The largest supplier
and the targest customer accounted for 61% and 7% of the
Group's purchases and revenue respectively. None of the Directors,
their associates nor any shareholder {whom to the knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share
capital} has any interest in the Group's five largest suppliers or
five largest customers.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group as at 31st March,
2007 are set out on page 17.

HE AR BE AT &l
EEM - FRR BB A TR B
BRUERRIESEI9ER -

& ¥
FIER - RO RE R RS 105 X106
2

AR TIRE 2 H#H
R-RREFZA=+—R THSEFREZ
B 5 . B 9B B BT 3RS <

REME
A RADRORBENYHRERES S
-

mE - BENERE
FRA - DY BERAROEDRNHERE
58 5 167 -

'+
=B
FREAEZFRLF=ZRA=+—EZRITHERR
HUEHZIRBERYBERME29-

MM E

SREAERERNEIRRMA -

TEEPRHER

AR EAHEGHEIRBATTEERE
75%  MAREZAXEFGRRERFE T8
24% - Rh R ARBEEREFSAEGERABMEN
BEUHERS1%ET% - FAFREHF - HBRA
THREMRE(RBERAAOEEFERACTT
BABHS%E) MEEFENN T RHEELEX
EF GRS -

TEWME : |
FRENR —_BELrFSAS+-AzEEDEY |
MERTI7H -

(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED H = T T g R 8 R 2 ﬁ)




f

Report of the Directors

LéWMMRwom2m7:$$t$$m

EESREE

29

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31st March, 2007, the Group employed approximately 850
full time staff globally. Total staff costs amounted to approximately
HK$129 million for the year ended 31st March, 2007. The
remuneration policies are reviewed periodically on the basis of the
nature of job, market trend, company performance and individual
performance. Other staff benefits include bonuses awarded on a
discretionary basis, medical schemes, retirement schemes and

employees’ share option scheme.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations of HK$98,000 to
charitable bodies.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws although there are no restriction against such rights under

the laws in Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of
the Company by the Company cr any of its subsidiaries during the

year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Yei Ching

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar
Mr KUOK Hoi Sang

Mr KAN Ka Hon

Miss Lity CHOW

Mr CHANG Wan Lung, Robert

(Chairman)

(Managing Director)

(appointed on 21st May, 2007)
Mr FUNG Pak Kwan (resigned as Managing Director
on 1st April, 2007)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr Shinichi YONEHARA

Mr WU King Cheong

Mr KWONG Man Sing
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr CHANG Wan Lung,
Robert, Ms Lily CHOW and Mr KWONG Man Sing shall retire from
office at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The Independent Non-
Executive Directors are subject to the same retirement requirements
as the Executive Directors.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

DR CHOW Yei Ching, Messrs CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar, KUCK Hoi
Sang, FUNG Pak Kwan, KAN Ka Hon and Shinichi YONEHARA are
interested in certain contracts in that they are the Directors and/or
have beneficial interests in CIHL. Details of these contracts are
more fully disclosed in the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below.

Save as aforementioned, no other contract of significance to which
the Company or its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director had a
material interest subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, ncne of the Directors have an interest in any
business constituting a competing business to the Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The Group has from time to time conducted transactions with
CIHL and its subsidiaries (the “CIHL Group”} which are "connected
persons” for the purposes of the Listing Rules.

EHm

BEFLFZER - REELEL - AFFNDER
BYTEX£HARIBERZBRRBEEXA LS
BB RET - B IERITER I ESES
EERERTHBER -

EENGHNANZHELE
AAENE - BEERE - BEELE - Hiam
i BRBAERKRR-SEEETAMS
AEES BEREDA-ERZERR,/ %N
HEHRLER2ME  AEANZHARTX
ELEFEEIET ST 8

B LR ES - FOSREER DB WA M
MBLAXFABEMRBRARREFERFERE
e - YEFTEATEREHRAARE Y
& -

EENBERERH2ER

FEA AENSRIEEREARARBE 2R
B A Er®ENS-

FERERS

& 8 ERE BT 4 (A £] R LRI R AL
WRAT((HEEREMI) & LT RAIET R
530

(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED H =+ Z E # R # B 2 ﬂ)




ANNUAL REPORT 2007 = Q@+t EH

( Report of the Directors

EREWREE

31

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS I EFE R 5w

{continued)

During the year ended 31st March, 2007, the Company has in
effect the continuing connected transactions set out beiow which BT TXHRZzZHAMEZ S
are non-exempt continuing connected transactions under the Listing q] -
Rules. The following tenancy agreements (the "Tenancy
Agreements”) were entered into by Chevalier (CA) Holdings Limited

{("COAH"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as tenant

with the following subsidiaries of CIHL as landlord{s). Details of ERFHERERBWT
the transactions (the “Transactions”) are set out as follows:—

Landlord Date of Agreement Terms Premises

%% BHEE Fiikn g HEDE

Winfield Development Limited

HARRARAT

Peak Gain Limited

KHBERAE

30th September, 2004

—E2EFAA=LH

28th November, 2006

ZEERF
T-A=+NH

30th September, 2004

ZZP@FEARZAA

28th November, 2006

—ZRRAE
+-AZ+AR

2 years commencing
from 1st October, 2004

REN_BFHF
TA-BAR%

2 years ccmmencing
from 1st Ociober, 2006

AE B-RFRE
+A—-aB%

2 years commencing
from 1st October, 2004

mE B-_FEAF
TA-AMRH%

2 years commencing
from 1st October, 2006

FE H-RTAE
+R--BR#

3rd Floor of Chevalier Warehause
Building, 1 On Fuk Street,
On Lok Tsuen, Fanling,
New Territories, Hong Keng
FANA
HETSBRRE -1
HtEAAN=REL

Portions of 6th, 7th, 8th, Sth
and 10th Floars of Chevalier
Engineering Service Centre,
21 Sheung Yuet Road,
Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong

FRABOEHE- T8
ETTEEEDTL
Y - i X
hERTRBIREL

BEZY¥+LFSAST—BLEEAN  FTRF
C AR DR
BREXSATEREZFARERS - &40
Alz2AMBLA-EH(BREMEEARE
ATRIEED AAFRTHIELRRAMB R
BARETIUTHEGSS([BOGBHR]) - &

Rental for the year
HRHEd

(HKS)

(&%)

300,852

405,122

1,784,106

2,043,468

(n T ZE EMR BB S B CHEVALIER PACIFIC
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

{continued)

Landiord Date of Agreement Terms
Y GHROE Bad

Oriental Sharp Limited 30th September, 2004

HEHRAE “¥FAFARZTAH

+A-28%

28th November, 2006

2 years commencing
from 1st October, 2004

HEE_SFMNE

2 years commencing

HEBEEXS w

Premises Rental for the year
"R BRAS
(HKS}
(B%)
Portiens of 19th and 22nd Floors 67,740
of Chevalier Commercial Centra,
8 Wang Hoi Road,
Kowloen Bay, Hong Kong
ERNBBERENEHIBEDO
ThBE -+ QB
88,062

from 1st October, 2006

ZREAET-AZTAB
+A-HRH

During the year, rentals for the Tenancy Agreements amounting
to approximately HK$4.7 million were paid to the CIHL Group.

After the expiration of the Tenancy Agreements on 30th September,
2006, the Group has renewed those tenancies of the respective
premises for a further two years commencing from 1st October,
2006 to 30th September, 2008. An announcement was pubtished
on 28th November, 2006 regarding the Tenancy Agreements in
accordance with the Listing Rules. The Transactions were subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements under Rule
14A.34 of the Listing Rules and were exempted from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company had complied with the
raporting and announcement requirements set out in Rules 14A.37
to 14A.40 and Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47 of the Listing Rules.

All the continuing connected transactions under the Tenancy
Agreements were eniered in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the respective companies after due negotiations on an
arm’s length basis with reference to the prevailing market

conditions.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

{continued)

The Transactions have been reviewed by the Independent Non-
Executive Directors of the Company. The Independent Non-
Executive Directors of the Company have confirmed that the

continuing connected transactions have been entered into:
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to/from independent third

parties;

(i)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such

transactions; and

{iv} on terms which are fair and reasonabie and in the interests

of the sharehoiders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company had also confirmed 1o the Board
that the Transactions:

(i) had received the approval from the Board of Directors;

(i} did not exceed the cap stated in the relevant annocuncement;

and

(i)  were entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements

governing such transactions.

On 2nd May, 2007, an agreement in relation to the sale and
purchase of the Sale Shares and the Sale Assets (the “Agreement”)
was approved by the independent shareholders at the Special
General Mgeting of the Company, Pursuant to the Agreement,
COAH would be acquired by CIHL and upon completion of the
Agreement, the transactions contemplated under the Tenancy
Agreements will no longer constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules and the
Company will cease to comply with the reporting requirements
under Rules 14A.45 and 14A.46 of the Listing Rules and the annual
review requirements under Rules 14A.37 to 14A.40 of the Listing
Rules in respect of the Tenancy Agreements.

BFEEWEBERX S w
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st March, 2007, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the share,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corperations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance {the “$FQ”), which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFQ), or which were required to be
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to
§352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant io the Model Code
were as follows:

(a) Interests in the Company - Shares

EERFETHRABZES
1o

R-BELF=ZA=ZT—B  ERFHERTE
TRABREAQCAREHAMAGR (ERAEHZRY
TP (TEARARERND SXvED) 285 - A
BEREOGEMHFTHBERCRBESRATENS
XVEBETRET UGS AR RBTH I EHER
HE(BRZLRETIRE LIRSS R RFE
REFIASAFERE2RARRER) - FHAYE
REREREHEEARAEIS2ERERATEE
2EmMAsEGERES  RBEFEETIRAD
BERARBEHIEEREANT

() AQRRE-KH

Number of ordinary shares

TimBRin e
Approximate
Personal Corporate percentage
Name of Directors Capacity interests interests Total of interest
g &1 T8 AE & LRI B e ET R
aagkt
(%)
CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 6,815,854 107,822,933* 114,638,787 60.25
f& 77 e and interest of
controlled corparation
RHEAAR
Skl v 2 g
KUOK Hoi Sang Beneficial owner 2,400,000 - 2,400,000 1.26
gL MEEFA
FUNG Pak Kwan Beneficial owner 2,580,000 - 2,580,000 1.36
EiRE WEHEFA
KAN Ka Hon Beneficial owner 451,200 ~ 451,200 0.24
Iz WaEF A
Shinichi YONEHARA Beneficial owner 600 - 600 0.00032
KERE~ MeHiBA A

* Dr CHOW Yei Ching has notified the Company that under the
SFO. he was deemed to be interested in 107,822,933 shares of
the Company which were held by CtHL as Dr Chow beneficially
owned 150,356,359 shares in CIHL, representing approximately
53.97% of the issued share capital of CIHL. Dr Chow was deemed
to be interested in these shares under the SFO and these shares
were same as those shares disclosed in the section “Substantial

Shareholders’ Interests in Securities” below.

* B rgis + 025 5 2 T B 150,356,3590%
Bin - EHETEREBGH53.97% - BEER
EHEmGS - AT HERESESELTHENR
2ADAIMR 107,822,933 2 - Bligt
¥oRHmERA kLSS« ESRAETER
(EERFE L EHES AR BGER -
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

{b) Interests in Associated Corporation - Shares

EERIETHRARZE?
WE 25 o)
(Z) BRADMN- B

Number of ordinary shares

EimAat i B A
Personal Approximate
Name of Directors Associated corparation Capacity interests Total percentage
HMERRE fHE 2R &7 BAER B of interest
AN
BOH
(%)
CHOW Yei Ching CIHL Beneficial owner 150,356,359 150,356,359 53.97
B 7R Ht @K THEHA
KUOK Hoi Sang CIHL Beneficial owner 98,216 98,216 0.04
et HAHE WHEAE A
FUNG Pak Kwan CIHL Beneficial owner 93,479 93,479 0.03
i (ap B+ EE TWHEERA
KAN Ka Hon CIHL Beneficial owner 29,040 29,040 0.01
i 53 & H - R WHEEA A
Shinichi YONEHARA CIHL Beneficial owner 1,671 1,671 0.001
KEE— H+ B WA A

Save as disclosed above and in “Share Option Schemes” below, as
at 3tst March, 2007, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company, no other person has interests or
short pasitions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be notified
1o the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which he is taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO); or are required, pursuant to $352 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register referred to therein, or are required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

BEXRTXzMERERS HBEN R-F
FrF=A=+—0 HRELIAUERTEAK
ABFE BERAECATRECARHETEER
KR (ERAEEFRUERAFEXVE) ZBGE - 4
MR RFEF P HEEARER S RGNSV
BERESHBAAEI AT RMIMZERRE
E(EEERE EIREHFREERHAIGEN B
BIFRA 2 EENER)  AFARBRFRHARE
B35 R ECE R E MR TR Az RN
B ARBRETRISREDARBEMZ
fEEAER -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A share option scheme of the Company (the “CPHL Scheme*”) was
approved by the shareholders of CIHL and shareholders of the
Company on 20th September, 2002. Another share option scheme
of CIHL (the “CIHL Scheme”) was also approved by the sharehoiders
of CIHL on 20th September, 2002. The CPHL Scheme and the
CIHL Scheme fully comply with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
During the year, no share option was granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed under the CPHL Scheme and the CIHL Scheme. There
was no outstanding option under the CPHL Scheme and the CIHL
Scheme at the beginning and at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director oifering for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation),

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Apart from the management agreement entered into with CiHL
Group as set out in note 41 1o the financial statements, no other
contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into or

subsisted during the year.

BE AR fE st 2l
HIESRARACARER-_SEF-_FAA=
+TAEREZRR -HBREAO(TELZEEH
gl)) - BE+tEERER-FE-EAF-+EH
HE—EHETEBMBENG (TELE/
2 - HTEZ AR TRARHOREERSH
EHRETRUEFTTEZRAT - FEN - FERE
RERRE LIS RE LREEmEL -
Il - EHRER - RFEVRTFE  HEHL
EEHARATRRGHERTHE2EREZE
25 e

EERBSL

B O TR0 2% 7 00 2 B R A 0 B £F
B BRAR ARG ~FATIEMN G220
BUR M) T T F AR 1L 2 IS B 1) -

EERESL
BRMEESHESORARZ2ARRRATE
REHSITNERREBAN  FRAEXEETA
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BRBIEESH -
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Yei Ching, Chairman, aged 71, is the founder of
Chevalier Group since 1970. He is the Chairman and Managing
Director of CIHL, a public company listed on the Stock Exchange
and a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is also an
Independent Neon-Executive Director of Van Shung Chong Heldings
Limited, Shaw Brothers (Hong Keng) Limited and Tewngas China
Company Limited and a Non-Executive Director of Television
Broadcasts Limited. In 1995, Dr Chow was awarded with an
Honorary Docter Degree in Business Administration by The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and an Honorary University Feflow by
The University of Hong Kong. tn 1996 and 1997, he was appeinted
as an Honorary Member of the Board of Directors by Nanjing
University and was conferred an Honorary Degree of Dector of
Laws by The University of Hong Kong respectively. Dr Chow also
serves actively in a number of educationa! advisory committees
and gives substantial support to the aforementioned two
Universities in Hong Kong and The Hong Kong University of Science
& Technology in areas of researches and developments. He is also
a Consultative Professor of Zhejiang University and a Lecture
Professor of Sichuan Union University in the PRC, Dr Chow's
enthusiasm in public services is evidenced in his appointment in
2001 as the Vice Patron of The Community Chest in Hong Kong.
He was also appointed as the Honorary Consul of The Kingdom of
Bahrain in Hong Kong in 2001. He also actively participates in
various professional bodies and associations on fraternal and
Chinese affairs. To name a few, he is a Standing Committee
Member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Shanghai, the President of The Japan Society of Hong Kong and
the Chairman of the National Taiwan University-HK Alumni
Association, etc. In recognition of his contributions to local and
overseas societies alike, Dr Chow was awarded honorable
decorations from Britain, Belgium, France and Japan. Furthermore,
Dr Chow was also awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star from the
Government of the HKSAR in 2004. He is the father of Mr Chow
Vee Tsung, Oscar and Miss Lily Chow, Managing Director and
Executive Director respectively of the Company.

EE/N

BTES

Bmet X7 - BFELt—H A—ht¥
FEREIEEZAMA - BARLTERZER
REEARE ZLOAERBLTLARRELH
ZIERR - BHRABMAREAERLAE - K
AR (FR)ERARIREERESRAGFZEY
FRTHELBRBBABR DA ZFRTHS -
R-AALE  AMESRREHERELRMN
FERIHERAELBURTRRRAREREX
SRIH - FR-ANSER-ANEF DA
RARRAXPERNBROEHARRAREIE
2ELRE - A EREFHELEBERREKX
PREERHBEXBZHAMEZEBAZH  BHU=
MARERRERBERFAL TALIR - RES
HEMIARZEARREREM)IBRE AR ZH
EHE - AU —ARCESOHER R
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES {continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar, Managing Director, aged 33, joined
Chevalier Group in 2000 and is an Executive Director of CIHL, a
public company listed on the Stock Exchange and a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Mr Chow holds a degree in Master
of Engineering from the University of Oxford, U.K. He is currently
the Chairman of the Environment Committee of the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce, a General Committee Member of
the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and the
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies. He is also a Council
Member of the Hang Kong Productivity Council and a Committee
member of the Infrastructure Development Advisory Committee of
Hong Kong Trade Development Council. He is the son of Dr Chow
Yei Ching, the Chairman of the Company and CIHL and is alsc a
brother of Ms Lily Chow, an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang, Executive Director, aged 57, joined Chevalier
Group in 1972 and is the Vice Chairman and Managing Director
of CIHL, a public company listed on the Stock Exchange and a
substantial shareholder of the Company. He is the President of
The Lift and Escalator Contractors Association in Hong Kong, the
Vice-Chairman of the Hong Kong - China Branch of The
International Association of Elevator Engineers, Vice President of
The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors
Limited and a Registered Lift and Escaiator Engineer in Hong Kong.
He is a member of the Guangzhou Committee of the Chinese
Peapie’s Political Consultative Conference. Mr Kuok has extensive
experience in business development and is responsible for the
strategic planning and management of the operations of lifts and
escalators, building construction, building materials and supplies,
aluminium works, electrical and mechanical services, civil
engineering, property development as well as investment projects
of the Chevalier Group.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

Executive Directors {(continued)

Mr KAN Ka Hon, Executive Director and Company Secretary, aged
56, joined Chevalier Group in 1986 and is an Executive Director
and Campany Secretary of CIHL, a public company listed on the
Stock Exchange and a substantial shareholder of the Company. He
is an Independent Non-Executive Director of Victory City
International Heldings Limited and Easyknit Enterprises Holdings
Limited. He is responsible for management of the Chevalier Group's
accounting and treasury, corporate finance, investment, pension
fund and company secretarial activities. Mr Kan holds a Bachelor
Degree in Science from The University of Hong Keng and is a
fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the U.K. and a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

Miss Lily CHOW, Executive Director, aged 44, joined Chevalier
Group in 1990. She is responsible for strategic planning and
business development of the Group. She is also a member of
Guangdong Pravincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, Committee of Taiwan, Hong Kong, Macau
and Overseas of the Zhejing Provincial the Committee of the
Chinese People’s Politicat Consultative Conference and Shanghai
Women's Federation Committee. She holds a Bachelor Degree and
is the daughter of Or CHOW Yei Ching, the Chairman of the
Company and is also a sister of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar,
Managing Director of the Company.

Mr CHANG Wan Lung, Robert, Executive Director, aged 43, joined
Chevalier Group in 2005 as General Manager of Business
Development. He holds a Bachelor degree of Science from the
University of San Franciscc. Mr Chang was with the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council ("HKTDC "} for more than 17 years, of
which he held management positions of increased respensibility,
culminating as Senier Product Promotions Manager. He also served
as Director of Northern China between 1999 & 2002 during his
time with HKTDC.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr Shinichi YONEHARA, aged 56, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in 2001 and a member of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is
a graduate of Keio University, Japan. Mr Yonehara joined Mitsui &
Co., Ltd in 1974 and retired in January 2001. He was appointed
General Manager for Machinery Division of Mitsui & Company
{Hong Kong) Limited from 1983 to 1992. He is the Vice Chairman
of Simon Murray & Company (Japan). Mr Yonehara is well-
experienced in aircraft, telecommunications and IT businesses.

Mr WU King Checng, aged 56, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in October, 2002 and a member of the
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He is an Executive Director of Lee Cheong Gold Dealers Limited.
He is also a Councillor of the Eastern District Council of the HKSAR,
Vice Chairman of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce and
Member of Hang Kong Housing Authority, as well as the Honorary
Permanent President of the Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange
Society and the Permanent Honorary President of the Hong Kong
Stockbrokers Association. He is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Yau Lee Holdings Limited, Henderson Land Development
Company Limited, Henderson Investment Limited, Miramar Hotel
and Investment Co., Ltd. and Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company
Limited, all of which are companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr KWONG Man Sing, aged 61, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in 2004 and a member of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is
a professional accountant and also holds a Bachelor degree of
Applied Science in Electrical Engineering of University of Toronto.
He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the Canadian Institute
of Chartered Accountants. Mr Kwong was with
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants for more
than 32 years, of which he was an audit partner since 1980 until
he retired from the firm on 30th June, 2002. Mr Kwong is an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Tai Cheung Holdings

Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries were participating
companies in the Chevalier Group Staff Provident Fund Scheme
{the "Scheme”) as defined in the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance which is a defined contribution retirement scheme. The
Scheme was granted exemption from Mandatory Provident Fund
regulations by the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority
and shall not open to new members starting from 1st December,
2000. Certain of the Company’s overseas subsidiaries contribute
to their loca! government's central pension plans for their
employees. Contributions to the Scheme are made by both the
employers and the employees at the rate of 3.5% to 16% on the

employees’ salaries.

Pursuant to Government legislation, Bank Consortium Trust
Company Limited was selected by the Group as an alternative
Mandatory Provident Fund ("MPF") service provider for employees
of the Group who join the Group from 1st December, 2000. The
MPF is available to the employees aged 18 to 65 and with at least
60 days of service under the employment of the Group in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made by the Group at 5% based on the
staff’s relevant income at a maximum of HK$20,000 per rnonth.
The benefits are reguired by law to be preserved until the retirement

age of 65.

The Group's total coniributions to these schemes charged to the
consolidated income statement during the year amounted to
HK$4,926,000 against which the forfeited contributions amaunting
to HK$301,000 have been deducted. There were forfeited
contributions amounting to HK$60,000 available at the year end

date for the reduction of future employer’s contributions.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st March, 2007, so far as is known to the Directors and

the chief executives of the Company, the interests and short

positions of the persons or corporations in the shares or underlying

shares of the Company which have been disclosed to the Company

under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO

and as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

under §336 of the SFO were as follows:

Substantial shareholders

TERR

CHOW Yei Ching

A

MIYAKAWA Michiko
EiEEF

CIHL

HEHA-ER

Chevalier {HK) Limited
ET(HEB)ARDF
Firstiand Company Limited

CHEN Wai Wai, Vivien

Crosby Investment Holdings Inc.

Nan Fung Resources Limited
EUAEFERLE
Gentfull Investment Limited

EZHRERRAA

Capacity
215

Beneficial owner

D@ BEA

Beneficial owner

mRERA

Beneficial owner

mMEBAFA

Beneficial owner

HEEAA

Beneficial owner

WEBFA

Beneficial owner

WHHERA

interest of controlled corporation
ERHQFES

Interest of controlled corporation
SEHR Rz R

Beneficial owner

MEEAA

TERREFEn

R-BRLF=ZA=Z+-"8 HE2AHFREE
ETBEASRA - THALSERBRECTRG
SRR DS AEFRREES R GRSV
HE2EIFHHBERFAXRARE - RALER
FRFRERFRARGFEIBcERFZEEM

RZEHREENT :

‘Number of
Shares held
{Long position)

B (Fa)

114,638,787

{Notes 1 and 3) (Ff#£1.83)
114,638,787

(Notes 2 and 3) (B 8283)
107,822,933

{Note 3) (B a£3)
13,471,200

{Note 3) (Fifz£3)
13,471,200

(Note 3) (Kt 3£3)
18,800,000

{Note 4) (1 &t4)
18,800,000

{Note 4) (Bt zE4)
18,800,600

{Note 4) (Fizta)
18,800,000

(Note 4) (B i+4)

(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOIDINGS LIMITED R £t S B E R O B 2 EJ)

Approximate
percentage
of interest
RE 2R A
"ot

(%)

60.29

60.29

56.70

7.08

7.08

9.89

9.89

9.89

9.89
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

1. Under the SFO, these shares were held by Dr Chow as (i) personal
interests of 6,815,854, {ii) corporate interests of 107,822,933 in
which Dr Chow was deemed to be interested.

2. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of
Dr Chow, was deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
114,638,787 shares held by Dr Chow.

3 These shares were held as interest of controlled corporation
through Firstland Company Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chevalier {HK)
Limited. Chevalier (HK} Limited is a company incorporated in
Hong Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CIHL. CIHL is a
company incorporated in Bermuda. Under Part XV of the SFO,
Chevalier (HK) Limited, CIHL, Dr Chow and his spouse were
deemed to be interesied in 13,471,200 shares.

4. Ms Chen Wai Wai, Vivien, Crosby Investment Holdings Inc., Nan
Fung Rescurces Limited are taken to be interested in 18,800,000
shares which were held by Gentfull Investment Limited. Gentfull
Investment Limited is wholly owned by Nan Fung Resources
Limited and in turn wholly owned by Crosky Investment Holdings
Inc. which is 100% owned by Ms Chen Wai Wai, Vivien.

Save as disclosed above,I as at 31st March, 2007, so far as is
known to the Directors and the chief executives of the Company,
no other person has interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations which were required to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO and as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under 5336 of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of the Company.
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3. HREBHEBREAARERATZIEREN
Firstland Company Limited (REEREMH T2
HE LB A - Firstland Company Limited B
HE(EB)ARLT(NEREMRIZER
AREAERZHEBAR : MEL(EE S
BEREAARTRAR (REREEMAZZE
BAF)2AREZHBLR - AREHRY
HERSEXVE - X (FR)TRAA - ALTE
B B4 ROH AR R B B A Firstland
Company LimitedFR $§ 5 13,471,200/ A% (3 2 18
% -

4. BB LT - Croshy Investment Holdings Inc.
REUHIEARA SR R1H18,800,000/%
BE{D - BEE I 34§ & Croshy Investment
Holdings Inc. 100% B HE : i Crosby Investment
Holdings Inc i EAIM B R TR 2 7 100% M
B -AnEReRARNaRIZEER LT
100% AR HE -
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ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Except for the share option schemes adopted by the Company and
its associated corporations, at no time during the year was the
Company or its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party 10 any arrangement to enable the Directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body

corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of the Company is committed to maintain high standards
of corporate governance. The Company has complied throughout
the year ended 31st March, 2007 with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules with exception of deviation. Detailed information on the
Company's corporate governance practices is set out in the
Corporate Gavernance Report contained on pages 19 to 25 of the

Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage
of the Company's share which are in the hands of the public
exceeds 25% of the Company’s total number of issued shares as
at 18th July, 2007, the latest practicable date to ascertain such

information prier to the issue of this annual report.

AUDITORS

In September 2006, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as
auditors of the Company and Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers were
appointed as the auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy.

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.
On behalf of the Board
CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18th July, 2007
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Formerly known as Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited;

incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statemenis of Chevalier
Pacific Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group®) set out on pages 47 to 124, which comprise
the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31st March
2007, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting pelicies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
staiements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Crdinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in

the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consclidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accardance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

HCHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
3
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the avditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements,

We telieve that the audit evidence we have abtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for cur audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31st March 2007 and of the Group's profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18th July 2007
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For the year ended 31st March 2007 RE_FTLFZA=1—-A4FR

2007 2006
—RBe+LF —RENE
Note HKS'000 HK$'000
i BETR BT
Continuing operations HRERER
Revenue I % 5 259,907 188,423
Cost of sales iy {65.779) {47,545)
Gross profit EH 194,128 140,878
Other income, net R AF8 & 10,167 822
Other gains/{losses), net Hitde 2k, (B518) 54 7 2,850 (2,265)
Distribution costs MR A (173,166) {110,319)
Administrative expenses THXH (5.690) (5,228)
Operating profit - 28,289 23,888
Share of results of associates B {5 Bt 2 1 B) 3 i 20 955 -
Finance costs MHmER 8 (4,557) (3.824)
Profit before taxation BrBLA R 9 24,687 20,064
Income iax expenses i 10 (2,005) (2,824)
Profit for the year from KERAREERZ
continuing operations FEBERN 22,682 17,240
Discontinued operations FEREERYE
Profit for the year from REEROEERIE
discontinued operations FEEHRT 14 10,979 19,726
Profit for the year F 5 i F 33,661 36,966
Attributable to: LR
Equity holders of the Company RO FIRERE A 13 33,661 36,966
Minority interests 4> 81 B BT A - -
33,661 36,966
Dividends g2 11 13,376 13,709
Earnings per share &R T 12
From continuing and HESAREREHTHER
discontinued operations
- Basic and diluted (HK cents} —EA R GEIWL) 18.57 21.57
From continuing operations Py b8
- Basic and diluted (HK cents} -BExEEE GEID 12.51 10.06
From discontinued operations KEEHORBHER
- Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EXREY GEW 6.06 11.51

The notes on pages 55 to 124 are integral parts of these
consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31st March 2007

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Goodwill

Trademark

Interests in associates

Available-for-sale investments

Investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Other non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Debtors, deposits and
prepayments

Amount due from ultimate holding
company

Amounts due from customers for
contract work

Income tax recoverable

Investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Bank balances and cash equivalents

Non-current assets classified
as held for sale

Current liabilities

Creditors, bills payable, deposits
and accruals

Amount due to ultimate holding
company

Amounts due to customers for
contract work

Deferred income

Provision for taxation

Bank borrowings

Liabilities directly associated with
non-current assets classified
as held for sale

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

R-ZUPFLEZA=+-A

FNBRE
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ME BERRMB
ENEERE
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RNSEECAHERSD
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T
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]
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RITREREEEE
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REBREFRHE

ERERTDAMN

(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED R + Z Z 2 B # R & ﬁ)

2007 2006

-R9tE —BEARE

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
it B¥TR EBETR
15 - 7,120
16 58,890 44,631
17 - 2,192
19 84,010 82,392
19 108,000 108,000
20 62,092 -
21 9,247 10,020
22 51,320 49,588
24 19,498 17,104
393,057 321,047

23 6,897 66,991
24 24,699 94,324
25 - 1,756
- 342

2,553 662

22 62,142 73,279
26 - 32
27 88,250 72,399
184,541 309,785

14 171,479 -
356,020 309,785

28 48,832 77,045
25 1,404 -
- 264

1,073 20,420

- 942

29 52,000 52,000
103,309 150,671

14 105,969 -
209,278 150,671

146,742 159,114

539,799 480,161




Consolidated Balance Sheet

[
(

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 —S St FF#

HAEERER

As at 31st March 2007

B-QPLF=A=1+-8

Capital and reserves RAEREREG

Share capital % 25

Reserves R

Equity attributable to equity holders EDTFBREHFEA
of the Company FEiRtELS

Minority interests 4> SRR R 2%

Total equity A

Non-current liabilities FRBEM

Deferred taxation BERHE

Bank borrowings HFITHR

Total equity and non-current BREBEEFRBAM

liahilities

Approved by the Board of Directors on 18th July 2007 and signed
on its behalf by:

CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar
A%
Director

HE

The notes on pages 55 to 124 are integral parts of these

consolidated financial statements.

2007 2006

=gets CRBERE

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
it it BMTR AT
30 95,078 85,678

31 386,086 325,422

481,164 411,100

200 176

481,364 411,276

32 21,435 19,885

29 37,000 49,000

58,435 68,885

539,799 480,161

BREVER_FFLFLHA+NBH®E XET
JIEBHARER

KUOK Hoi Sang
BEgsE
Director

orE

FOSEI1IAAZHIBE DA GEMBERRZERS
1% o

(II T R KR A B L A CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS tIMITED)




50

Balance Sheet

EERAESR

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 — Q2R+ 8 H

3
)

As at 315t March 2007 BZFTFLF=H=+-8

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

interests in subsidiaries

Interests in associates

Invesiments at fair value through

profit or loss

Current assets

Deposits and prepayments

Amount due from ultimate holding

company

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Investments at fair value through

profit or loss

Bank balances and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Deposits and accruals

Amount due to ultimate holding

company

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

HERBEE

WE - EERERH
FritMiB a2 i
b ERRzHs
RASERCALEEEN
=1

B W E
FHEERERAA
R g A A 2 E]

R

FE RS 22 R IR 3K
REZBRELAEREMN
wH
RITEGRRETE

iy oR=Ri
FAZRGEREMER
BT REERAA
R

AREDN - INEIL

RBREFE

ARERLDAM

2007 2006

—RFLF —RERE

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
g3 BMTR BET T
16 54 97
18 302,313 266,527
20 61,137 -
22 14,841 13,810
378,345 280,434

24 550 650
25 - 1,756
18 86,276 74,876
22 94 -
27 15,215 15,434
102,135 92,716

28 18,238 4,827
25 1,404 -
18 43,918 38,650
63,560 43,577

38,575 49,139

416,920 329,573

(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED B =+ E T £ B 5 R

’

D
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As at 315t March 2007 B-FQtF=ZA=+-8

( Balance Sheet
L

2007 2006
—ge9tF ZREREF
Note HK$'000 HK$:000
¥ 2 BMTR YT

Capital and reserves BEEtE
Share capital i@ 30 95,078 85,678
Reserves i 3t 321,842 243,895
Total equity 2 416,920 329,573

Approved by the Board of Direciors on 18th July 2007 and signed BREBSENR_FFTLFLATNARBLE - EHT

on its behalf by: HMERRER
CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar KUOQK Hoi Sang
A& BetE

Director Director

mwE )

The notes on pages 55 to 124 are integral parts of these financial FSE1AHZHBE AR R 2 AR EH -
statements.

(ﬁ T 3 E ER B M AL 5 CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS 1IMITED)
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For the year ended 31st March 2007 HE-SFLFZA=+-0iL5%

Equity
attributable to
equity holders Minority Total
of the Company interests equity
X TERRE LEBRE B
RABAEGER e i Eyy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
AT BABE T BETT

At 1st April 2005 H_RB¥RFWNA—H 381,275 175 381,450
Exchange difference on translation BENHE 2B R

of operations of overseas —EEEamNEy

subsidiaries and an associate FREEHERZR (287) ! (286)
Profit for the year FEEHF 36,966 - 36,966
Total recognised income and FEECLERRAE

expenses for the year REem 36,679 i 36,680
Dividends paid EiTH R {6,854) - {6,854)
At 31st March 2006 R_BRAHE-RA=+-—H 411,100 176 411,276
Exchange difference on translation AHGHHEBLER

of operations of overseas —FEBRERANEE

subsidiaries and an associate FEEMELZS 5,079 24 5,103
Profit for the year FEEH M 33,661 - 33,661
Total recognised income and AFTEOEEBUAR

expenses for the year HEam 38,740 24 38,764
Dividends paid BERRE {13,322) - {13,322)
Issue of share capital BITRE 44,744 - 44,744
Share issuance expenses BRBFTRAE (98) - (98)
At 31st March 2007 A-BRtLHZH=+-8 481,164 200 481,364

ESSFE1ME LM ARGEVBRRZEKE

consclidated financial statements. @

The notes on pages 55 to 124 are integral parts of these

(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LtIMITED H £ Z & # B # B 2 ﬁ)
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Operating activities

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Share of results of associates

Interest from bank deposits

Interest on bank leans and
overdrafts

Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid ‘ease
payments

Provision/(written back of provision)
for impairment of receivables

Net losses/(gains} on disposals of
property, plant and equipment

Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value

Impairment losses on
available-for-sale investments

Unrealised {gains)/losses on
derivative financial instruments

Realised and unrealised (gains)/losses
on investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Impairment loss on amount due
from an associate

Reversal of impairment loss on
prepaid lease payments

Increase in fair value of investment
properties

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
Changes in working capital
Decrease/{increase) in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in debtors,
deposiis and prepayments
Decrease in properties for sale
Decrease/(increase) in investments
at fair value through profit or loss
Decrease in amounts due from
customers for contract work
Increase in creditors, bills payables,
deposits and accruals
(Decrease)increase in amounts due
to customers for contract work
Decrease in deferred income
Change in amount due with
uMtimate holding company
Interest paid
Profits tax paid
Profits tax refund
Exchange realignment

Net cash inflow from operating
activities

For the year ended 31st March 2007

SER

B Bt B e #
HE
iRk SN
RITHEFH LA
RITERRER
e
i
BENEARE
#iH
MR RE RN
([ 13 38 )
HUmE  BBEREHZ
iR/ (Hr28) 7Fm
HEFAETRR
A2E
AHEmRE 2
HERH
TEMBIAZ RSN
(fe28) /H8
RAOAMEEL L ERR
Mgz BB RR2E
(W) /B H
— R 2 8 IR R
ZHEBER
BEAMEERE
ZHESR
WAMEZANE
b it

LEEGEBAZ
BEBRERL
EEEGRD
EREL (M
ERERD - FHESREBESRE
;A ()
FUMER L
RRBGELABARENER
L7 (H8hn)
RANIBREREERR
W Z %
R ERE TFARSR
it RAE M
HENIEERES
Ytz HmEEL) e
WA AR S
FE LG B £ 4R B 0 B
BIRE
ERCE RN
T R 18
FRHER
EXRAE

FEER¥XB RS
RABH

RE_QQLFA=+-0L¥H

2007 2006
—g989+tF —BERE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BYTR BRI
36,523 40,828
(955) -
(1,383) (1,653)
5,118 3,906
19,152 12,421
184 251
12 {1,983)
143 (351)
2,432 1,000
1,473 2,466
(1,715) 2,882
(8.828) 729
280 1,745
- (107}
(737) (190)
51,699 61,944
8,608 (8,475)
105 (12,722)
- 1,135
18,233 {12,781)
192 597
34,489 5.306
(219} 65
(2,490} (394)
3,160 (1,045)
(5,118) (3,9086)
(3,707) (6.636)
34 374
- 117
104,986 23,579

(Riﬁiﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ‘i}ﬁ

CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS HMITED)
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For the year ended 31st March 2007 BE-FYLF=A=+-BiFHE

2007 2006
—89LF —ERREF
HK$'000 HK$°000
A%TR ERTT
Investing activities REER
Interest received B Wi e 1,383 1,280
Net advance to an associate —HBECRGERER (2800 (1,366)
Purchase of property, plant and BREO%  BE
equipment RiE (46,631) (18,494)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEmE - BB
plant and equipment RREOHRE 219 2,649
Purchase of available-for-sale BATTHESH
investments gy (700) (8,046)
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WEMBATHII®HY
subsidiaries ReEmHER - {204,531)
Investments in associates EABE A (46,300) -
Net cash outflow from RERERELZHS
investing activities i ESE (92,309) (226,508)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) BRERERNZAS
before financing activities FASFE) F@ 12,677 (202,929)
Financing activities R B
Issue of share capital TITR S 30 & 31 44,744 -
Share issuance expenses BimEITRX (98) -
Dividends paid [RARLE:] (13,322) (6,854)
New bank borrowings raised FiSHRITER 9,000 140,000
Repayments of bank borrowings HRBITER {(12,000) (39,000
Net cash inflow from MREKEL2HE
financing activities TARE 28,329 94,146
increase/{decrease) in bank BTEFRASEHE
balances and cash equivalents #m/ (R 41,001 (108,783)
Bank balances and cash REDZRITEER
equivalents at beginning ReEEE
of the year 72,399 181,330
Effect of changes in foreign Exsh
exchange rate kR 3,588 (148)
Bank balances and cash REBRZBTEER
equivalents at end of the year REHE 116,988 72,399
Bank balances and cash equivalents REKZBITEGER
at end of the year MEHE 116,988 72,399
Less: included in non-current assets B OEBASHABIELS
classified as held for sale ZHEREBAE 14 (28,738) -
88,250 72,399

FSSEI1MAZHERTRAMBRRZANE

consclidated financial statements. -

The notes on pages 55 to 124 are integral parts of these

(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED R * Z HT £ B &7 B 2 '"rﬂ)
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1 General Information 1 —RER

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited {the "Company") is a public
listed company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability.
The address of its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda. The address of
its principal place of business is 22nd Floor, Chevalier
Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong
Kong. The Company's ultimate holding company is Chevalier
International Holdings Limited ("CIHL"), a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. Both CIHL's and the
Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment hoiding
while the activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in

note 43 to the financial statements,

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company. These financial statements have been approved

for issue by the Board of Directors on 18th July 2007.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years

presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Chevalier Pacific
Holdirgs Limited have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Ffinancial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as medified by the revaluation
of investments properties, available-for-sale investments,
financial assets and financial liabilities {including derivative

instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

B2 orBRERLA ([RAR]) A—RE
EREAMAZIZzRLTHERAF - X
Tz SEfG s S & khdk RCanon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamiltan, HM 12, Bermuda ©
EXE2amMini AT ENROEHES
FEHAHEDLZI TR c KRAFZBEE
BAfAHtEREMARLA(TELR
Bl A-REBRESMMRIZERA
A HTEREXRLRZRIBOREERS
THMERLF((BEH]) L/ -

FLRZEEERSEREER  MALZEMH
RoBZEBER2NREY BERMELS -

TEEMBERRIAERIE  BEAAEL
B2 - FHBRRNEETER
ZRELFECATNABHAETE -

EXGTHRMR

REAREVWNNRENMBRZ T RO A
HERTX-BAEEREN  ZFREDR
FRAEZFFEDHER-

RHER
ETPTCHERARCAZESMBEEDR
BEEVHAEERN(EEMBEREER])
GH SAMBHEREFLRTONRH -
SERERERRERAEEBRZHAY
£ WHENER MEIERMBAN
(BEETR ZEERTEE -

(ﬁ t EERER AR
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(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Polictes (continued)

Basis of preparation {(continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4.

In the current year, the Group has applied the new standards,
amendments and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants {*HKICPA") that have
become effective. The adoption of these new standards does
not have any significant effect on the results and financial

positions of the Group.

The Group has also considered the new standards,
amendments and interpretations that may be applicable to
the Group. The Group has not yet early adopted the following
new standards, amendments and interpretations that have
been issued but are not yet effective. The directars of the
Company anticipate that the application of these new
standards, amendments and interpretatiens will have no
material impact on the results and financial positions of the

Group.

2

(a)

(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOWDINGS LIMITED H + Z & # B 5 B 2 ﬁ)

BERETHREBE w

RUBR (X
BREBMBRELUARANEEMBRER
FHEFEERHE TREEEZERE
AENBEHBERZBRG-ERRABS -
ARSLEENNRSERE 2 EE - RE
EERRGEHHE I ERRARAAERZE
B DR E4aRRE -

REFE  SEMERAETEGHGMLE
([BAERHMOR]]) MBEMD EBZ HHET
SR EITRRE - RRARERERNS A
E#ERMERAEREGEARZE -

FEMEEDREEARTENE 2 HER -
BIREE - AAHAEERREATIEH
fEEREM 2 AN ER - BETRRE - K
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B 7 R 2R B 5

{a)

(b)

Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies {continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

HKAS 1 {(Amendment}

BHEGHENE 15 (BETAR)

HKFRS 7

FAEWBESENER

HKFRS B

BEMBHRERRER

HK(FRIC)-Int 8

EA (ARVHRESREEOE) 2FBEN
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9

5% BAEVBESRBEAR) —REHIR
HK(IFRIC)-Int 10

BEX (OEMBER2EEOS) REZ10%R
HX{FRIC)-Int 11
EE(ARMBERRREAR) -BEE 1R
HK({IFRIC)-Int 12
EH(ARMBERREEAS) —2RBE 2R

Basis of consolidation

2 BEREHTHEBREZE w

{a) HWEE®EE
Presentation of Financial Statements: Capital Disclosures
MERRs28F  AFERE
Financial Instruments: Disclosures
&RITA ;KR
Operating Segments
RESTH
Scope of HKFRS 2
EHEMBHREERBE BN
Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
REHETRZENHNR
Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
FHMBESSRRE
HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions
EEMBEEEENF R -AEREFRARS
Services Concession Arrangements

AR5 R AP AR 4

(b) RERBERB

The consolidated financial statements incorporaie the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31st March.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether the

Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consclidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting pclicies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses

are eliminated on consolidation.

RAVERBROELARRARANMLERE
ZA=+—RAZHBER -

B BB 2 31 7Y 7 R M A 4 92 051 M I P AR S R
ZHRECX (RERRIAMEE)  — KR
BA-FRREZRE - HRUIAREES
PHR RN AZERKATERTE
BrBERRERTFEREREY -

MEARRRARHUEESECRENNEESR
EEA AR UREHEER TERERLE
BAE -

WEHRE  MELFZUEHERHESE -
UBESHBRERAKERA KR 2RMAA
E-®W -

MERBADAMZER & - WARR
HRIEEH MBS -

(R + F E R KR E MR D F CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED)
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2 EREHBEREBE @
Policies (continued)

(b} Basis of consclidation {continued) (b) EZEAWRBEER (W)
Minority interests in the net assets are presented separately CEREERMEIAEFERRFINE Y
from the Group's equity therein. Minority interests in the net BESRAZN - LERFEEMEMEETERE
assets consist of the amount of those interests at the date of ERErRAREEH AN RS EESH
the original business combination and the minority's share of MEEHBMUELBREMGESRZE
changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses B o BB T FE (5 A5 1 A oD BY AR B AE {5 B
applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest BORE# s HSAEEMZEHEYE -

' in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests ERIBRFEASHRNEEREERENE

of the Group except to the exient that the minority has a HEMEAUBRZEERERI -
binding obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses.
In the Company’s balance sheet, the interests in subsidiaries MRBLRESERSARBESHEBRE
are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The DAAEBTRNME - MBI EHHAERL
results of subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the AEDHRERRSEEANE -
basis of dividend received and receivable,

(¢} Goodwill/discount on acquisitions {c) ERUMITE

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or an
associate, representing the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant
subsidiary or associate at the date of acquisition, is carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses,

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
is presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.
Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate
is included in the cost of the investment of the relevant
associate.

KEH AR RMERFRMELZER B
WERTBOAEEPREE B A/ME
BorfsBEafzdBREE  AARR
HREMzOnEZER  DREFRIEDR
SHEHREE -

WEHBLARMELZAZLEHRREASR
ERMEAASRZA - WBREQFMESE
LA CERIRAEGHBECT ZIEAR
¢ L

D

(CHEVAHER PACIFIC HOQLDINGS LIMITED H + I & # R 7 B 2
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies {(continued)

Goodwill/discount on acquisitions (continued)

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if there is indication that goodwill might be impaired. For the
purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units (*CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGY to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment lgss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then 10 the other assets of the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the income
staternent. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of subsidiary or associate, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposat.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a
subsidiary or an associate represenis the excess of the net
fair value of an acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of the business combination
and is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Contingent liabilities of an acquiree are recognised at the
date of the acquisition if the fair value of the contingent
liabilities can be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are
initially measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. At
subsequent balance sheet date, such contingent liabilities are
measured at the higher of the amount that would be
recognised in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standard 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets” and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation, if appropriate.

Where the Group increases its interest in an enterprise that
is already an associate by the Group, the excess of the cost
of acquisition over the carrying amount of net assets
attributable to the additional interest acquired is recognised
as goodwill.

BERGTBRBZ o

mR/ WA R ()
ERESEETRENS  BEHRBRTIES
AIAEREE - BIESAREIT A - AR S
mE - WBAELZEARNSRESBEGE
ELREBOREEECRSEN - SHE
ERASEORETRENREZ BRKE -
EESEGRZELEARENBEETRI
GEMEREAFRTETRENS - BH
BEFETHRFELEZHRNS - OIS
EERsELRSHURENBERREEN
EITRAENS MELARSHEGEZTTRE S
MAORHLEEE  WEEEDRMRESDR
HESEEZBOZEMBR2REEB £
% BYREHBEUzBABEE-TAAR
BESADEERBHERAER - BEHE
FEREEAMTPED -

Hit e R ERE QTN  XEH
RrRESENANERGHRRZEHE -

WHEMBANRBELRREE 2 UEF
R BDR A Z AT SAIAE - ATTREA
AfzOAEREEAERAHMNAZE
DR RUERER -

MERBAZRRAMZ DA EET R
B AEEARAMRKBRE ARE - AR
BMBMRKBE R EL AR - REE
Z#EHA  REARAMERREEREGM
HRUEITHRBE  SBRATSE AR EERE
BZEHERERAERZEERANBHE (0
HA)zB&SEL -

MREMERRERATNEBE LR 7 kF
ZAEY - RIRRAR 2B AT W R SME & 2R
HZBRERMEZER  NRZAEER -

(H:tﬁ!ﬁﬁ!&ﬁm

# CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED)




Notes to the Financial Statements

1 75 & MY 5F

AmwMRﬁom2m7:$$t$$ﬁJ

2 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, interests in
associates are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at
cosi as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's
share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the
associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate}, the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of
losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date
of acquisition is recegnised as goodwill. The goodwill is
included within the carrying amount of the investment and is
assessed for impairment as part of the investment. Any excess
of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
the income statement.

Where a Group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate, except
to the extent that unsealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case, the full

amount of losses is recognised.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies {continued)

{e) Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial Habilities are recognised in the
balance sheet when a Group entity becomes & party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
{other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted frem the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acguisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in the income statement.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On desecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in the income

statement.

In prior years, the Group presented the gross sales proceeds
and carrying value of financial assets disposed of during the
years as part of the Group's revenue and cost of sales
respectively. In the current year, the directors of the Company
considered it is more appropriate to reflect results of securities
trading on net basis and to present such amount as other
income. The adoption of the change has reduced the revenue
and cost of sales and in¢reased the other income by HK$15.6
million, HK$12.0 million and HK$3.6 million respectively for
the year ended 31st March 2007 and by HK$934.3 millien,
HK$87.9 million and HK$6.4 million respectively for the year
ended 31st March 2006.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

{e) Financial instruments {continued)
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or
payable is recognised in the income statement.

(i} Financial assets
The Group's financial assets are classified into either
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables or available-for-sale investments. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require deiivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of each category of financia!l assets are set out

below:

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
including those designated at {fair value through profit
or loss on initial recognition. At each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial reﬂcognition, financial assets
at fair value through grofit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in
the income statement in the period in which they arise,
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

{e) Financial instruments (continued)

i)

Financial assets {continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recagnition, loans and receivables
(including debtors, amounts due from associates and
bank balances) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses, An impairment ioss is recognised in the income
statement when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses
are reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in
the asset's recoverable amount can be related cbjectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying
amount of the asset ai the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would

have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as any of the
other categories set out above. At each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale
investments are measured at fair value. Changes in fair
value are recognised in equity, until the financial asset
is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in equity is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. Any impairment losses on available-
for-sale investments are recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed through the income
statement in subsequent periods. For available-for-sate
debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after

the recognition of the impairment losses.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting

2 EREHBRRME o
Policies {continued)

{e) Financial instruments (continued) (e) BB TA (M)
(i} Financial assets (continued) i) RHEEEEE)

Available-for-sale investments (continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such ungquoted equity instruments, they are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at each
balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition. An
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the asset and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
losses will not be reversed in subsequent periods,

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by
Group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial {iability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial
liabilities are classified into financial liahilities at fair
value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are financial liabilities held for trading on initial
recognition. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in the income

statement in the period in which they arise,
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{(e)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Financial instruments {continued}

(i)

(iif}

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Other financial liabilities

Cther financial liabilities including bank borrowings,
creditors and bills payable are subsequently measured

at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivatives

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge
its exposure against currency risk and interest rate risk.
Such derivatives are measured at fair value regardiess
of whether they have been designated as effective
hedging instruments by the Group. These are deemed
as financial assets held for trading or financial liabilities
held for trading. Changes in fair values of such
derivatives are recognised directly in the income
statement,

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are separated from the relevant host contracts and
deemed as held-for-trading when the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives
are not closely related to those of the host contracts,
and the combined contracts are not measured at fair
value through profit or loss. In all other circumstances,
derivatives embedded are not separated and are
accounted for together with the host contracts in
accordance with appropriate standards. Where the
Group needs to separate an embedded derivative but is
unable to measure the embedded derivative, the entire

combined contracts are treated as held-for-trading.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Groug,

is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises !and held under ocperating
leases and buildings held under finance leases. Land held
under operating leases are classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted

for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment
property is carried at fair value. Fair value is determined by
professional valuation conducted as at the balance sheet date.
Changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying amount
of the asset only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and
the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the financial period in which they are

incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement

as part of the other gains, net.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes. !f an item of properiy, plant and
equipment becomes an investment property because its use
has changed, any difference resulting between the carrying
amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property, plant
and equipment under HKAS 16, However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the net gain is recognised

in the income statement.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)
(g) Property, plant and equipment

(i)

(i)

Properties
Properties held for own use are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided on the cost of the buildings on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
20 to 50 years or the remaining terms of the respective
leases, whichever is the shorter after considering the

residual value.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. In prior years,
machinery, tools, equipment, furniture, fixtures, cffice
equipment and motor vehicles were depreciated on
reducing balance basis at annual charge rate of 20% to
40% with initial charge of 20%. The directors of the
Company have reviewed the usage of these assets and
considered it is appropriate to depreciate them on a
straight-line basis over their expected useful lives.
Accordingly, starting from 1st April 2006, depreciaticn
is provided to write off the cost of plant and equipment
over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis
after taking into account their estimated residual value

at the following rates per annum:

Annual charge

Store machine and Over the shorter of
the term of the lease,

or 10%-20%

eguipment

Machinery, tools and 10%-20%
equipment
Furniture, fixtures, 10%-20%

office equipment

and motor vehicles

2 ERGHEBEHMEZ w

wE MERRE

(i
REKBREZNE  DERLERER
M E R 2R ESARRIER -

(g)

BFE2FEHEESANGNARIE
80K T R BL 1+ 02 B T 20 50
FREEANZHRFHOIRESSD
)

HEREE

EERREDENEEREFERAENR
REGHENE  RBTFE  #E-T
B @8 FN - KR NOERER
HEDRESEERE  UERNHE
20% AR B FE I EH20%E 40%E
H-aRaBERCROBSEEZER
BRUBANEEZETHENIAR
E-BAit B-FTFA~AFEA-BR
W oBERERZFENERTERD
EmHE G2 FnME  ERRGHER
FHRTHHEBEFAEGETIR

)]

TERNR

EEs S R #10%-20%3k
ERAOFEHNE

ZREET

BE - TARSREG 10%-20%

WA BT - WOE
RERAE

10%-20%

(H T 2 B M A M 2 8 CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS 1|MITED)




Notes to the Financial Statements 1

AR ERHT T ANNUAL REPORT 2007 :ﬂﬂtfﬁfﬁﬁj

68

2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2 EXEHBEHRBun
Policies {continued)
(g) Property, plant and equipment {continued) (o) V¥ - BERRE (I
(i) Plant and equipment (continued) () BERRH )
The change in accounting estimates has no significant HE AR HAREA R FHET AR
impact to the Group's depreciation charged to the BHEZTOHREEREE -

income statement for the current year.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of HERBETEEC 7 BBTANEOE
an asset is determined as the difference between the BHRERHEERE #HEMUTE - TR
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and HERR -

is recognised in the income statement.

(h) Prepaid lease payments (hy EEERZE
Prepaid lease payments represent upfront premium paid for EREOREAT N LR AT A0 -
land cost. Prepaid lease payments are charged to the income EREOHEN ML BRRRAEERE
statement over the term of relevant land leases on a straight- FFABER -
line basis.

(i) Trademarks (iy #&|
On initial recognition, trademarks acquired separately and RENTERN - RERNSEEES MR
from business combinations are recognised at cost and at ZEESRERNEERREER - AR
fair value respectively. After initial recognition, trademarks HRE RAETREATFH-AIZEREE
with finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated WAFMBELANEBAESEANE - REER
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation THREH7BEEE  HDUESBHERA
for trademarks with finite useful lives is pravided on a straight- HEERTHAR - B ERERFHZE
line basis over their estimated useful lives, Trademarks with EEAKSEFEANBRELENYE -

indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any accumulated

impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a trademark are RHREEEEMEC I BERBTEAEZD
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds EfMERAEERAGEAEZ =RST - ¥
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in RERERHEFAAER R NERAER -

the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Trademark is tested for impairment annually or more BB ERTHENS  WEBRBATAE
frequently if there is indication that the assets might be TEEME - MERERTRM -
impaired.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Palicies (continued)

(j) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value, Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value s determined on the basis of anticipated
sales proceeds in the ordinary course of business less
applicable selling expenses.

(k) Revenue recognition
Income from sale of goeds is recognised when goods are
delivered and title to the goods has passed to the customers.
Revenue is arrived at after deduction of any sales returns,
discount and value-added tax.

Income from rendering of services is recognised at the time
when services are rendered. Receipts in advance of provision
of services are accounted for as deferred income.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset’s net carrying amount.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the respective leases.

() Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded
as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment
in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as 1o reflect a constant periodic rate of return on
the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2
Policies {continued)
{I) Leases (continued} (n

The Group as lessee

Rentals payables under operating leases are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the tarm of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivables as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-

line basis.

BERETHEME o

HR ()

FROEBFRA
BECHOHRTZEMESHAMETSER
AERERARER - FRITUERMED
MEERZEREEYNTE  REGHER
HRHERANERAZAL -

{m) Borrowing costs (m) BEEREE

Borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in

the period in which they are incurred.

(n) Foreign currencies (n)
In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity {foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing on
the balance sheet date. Non-monetary itemns carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in the income statement in the period in which
they arise, except for exchange differences arising on a
monetary item that forms part of the Group's net investment
in & foreign operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognised in equity in the consolidated
financial statements. Exchange differences arising on the
retransiation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in the income statement for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-menetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in equity, in which cases, the exchange components of that
gain or loss are also recognised directly in equity.

(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOILDINGS LIMITED B = I E B B &7 B 2 ﬁl)
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(n)

(0}

(p)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies {continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and lizbilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance
sheet date, and their income and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the peried, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as
a separate component of equity, the exchange fluctuation
reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in the
income statement in the period in which the foreign aperation

is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement plans and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense

as they fall due.

Taxation
Income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
period. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes income statement items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

2
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Taxation {continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet
liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax asseis are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwi!l or from the initial recognition {other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeahle

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable grofits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the
income statement, except when it relates to items charged
or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also dealt with in equity.

(P
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(q)

r

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Impairment

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet
been available for use are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs to setl and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units “CGU"). Assets other than
goodwitl that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Non-current assets held for sale

Assets are classified as non-current assets held for sale and
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
cosis to sell if their carrying amount is recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through a continuing

use.

(r)
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3 Financial Risk Management Objectives 3 B EBREEBELESE

and Policies

The Group's major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, investments at fair value through profit
or loss, debtors, amount due from an associate, derivative
financial instruments, amounts due from/tc ultimate helding
campany, creditors, bills payable, bank balances and
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes to the financial statements. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are imglemented cn a timely

and effective manner.

Market risk

(it Interest rate risk
The bank deposits, investments in debt securities and
structured deposits are exposed to fair value interest
rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The floating-
rate bank borrowings, bills payable and short-term bank
deposits are exposed to cash flow interest rate risk. The
management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group has investments in overseas equity and debt
securities denominated in foreign currencies and foreign
currency forward contracts. The foreign currency forward
contracts do not qualify for hedge accounting and are
deemed as financial assets or liabilities held for trading.
Certain bank balances, debtors and creditors are
denominated in foreign currencies. The management
will continue to monitor foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

(i) Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity and debt security price
risk through its investments in equity and debt securities.
The management manages this exposure by maintaining

a portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.
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3 Financial Risk Management Objectives 3 W igEMREIE B 12 KB K
and Policies (continued) (£1)
(b) Credit risk (o) EEAR

Principal financial assets consist of available-for-sale
investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss,

debtors, bank balances and cash eguivalents.

The Group’'s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at 31st
March 2007 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
balance sheet. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual debt at each balance sheet date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Transactions with banks and counterparties of
investment and derivative transactions are limited to high
credit rating financial institutions. The Group monitors its
exposure to credit risk in respect of subsidiaries and associates
through exercising significant influence over their financial
and operating policy decisions and reviewing their financial
position. Investments in debt securities are concentrated on
high credit rating issuers. The Graup has no significant
concentration of credit risk in respect of its trade debtors,
with exposure spread over a number of counterparties and
customers. In this regard, the directors consider that the credit
risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain prudent liquidity risk management
and flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient cash
equivalents, readily realisable marketable securities and to
have committed short term and medium term credit lines

available.

The directors of the Company believe that the Group has
obtained sufficient committed and uncommitted general credit

facilities from banks for working capital purposes.
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4 FAgEEsrhET RAE

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and

Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to he
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying ameunts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

Estimated impairment of goodwill and trademarks

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and trademarks
have suffered any impairment, The recoverable amounts of
CGUs have been determined based on its fair value less costs
to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates (note
19).

Management believes that any reasonable possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of the CGUs to exceed its recoverable
amount.

Income tax expenses

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of
jurisdictions. Judgement is required in determining the
pravision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred income tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made,

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as the managament
of the Group considers it is probable that future taxabfe
profits will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the
expectations are different from the original estimates, such
difterences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
in the period in which such estimates have been changed.
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(<)

(d)

(e)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (continued)

Estimated impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables, Provisions are applied to receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of impairment of
receivables requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectations are different from the original
estimates, such differences will impact the carrying value of
receivables in the period in which such estimates have been

changed.

Estimated write-downs of inventories to net realisable

value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories.
Write-downs on inventories are recorded where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be realised. The identification of write-downs requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will
impact the carrying value of inventories in the period in which
such estimates have been changed.

Estimated acquisition consideration

The Group acquired a 49% equity interest of Sinochina
Enterprises Limited (“SEL") for a consideration which is based
on the audited results of SEL for the year ending 31st
December 2006 and 2007.The determination of the final
consideration requires the use of estimates on the
performance of SEL. Where the actuai results of SEL are
different from the origina! estimates, such difference will
impact the final consideration and the goodwiil arising from

the acquisition {refer to note 20).
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5 Revenue 5 W=
2007 2006
“BBLE  —TEAE
HKS'000 HK$'000
BETR BYTR
Revenue represents net amount received WRIEXBTREBZ2EH%
and receivable from: R EE
Continuing operations BERERER
Sale of food and beverages B E 246,852 175,884
Sale of coffee machines FICEMSE S 3,224 3,585
Interest income from investments at REBBEOAEEEMN
fair value through profit or lass BEMEWA 9,831 8,954
259,907 188,423
Discontinued operations HENTERE
Sale of computer and business machines BEHEAEREHSE 422,506 475,789
Provision of maintenance services R FEERS 67,064 67,964
Leasing of equipment eEBEn 2,084 1,659
491,654 545,412
751,561 733,835
An analysis of the Group's revenue by business and FEMEEBEIRRBENS 2 WH SR
geographical segment is set out in note 33. B B P EE33 -
vy
Other Income, Net 6 Hfiblg AFHE
2007 2006
—Re+LE ZBERF
HKS'000 HK$'000
BT BEYTT
Continuing operations EMEENR
Interest from bank deposits BIIERFE®RA 1,125 1,303
Gains/(losses) on investrents at fair value RERERELOAEEEN
through profit or loss BaEZzWE S (BR) 8,828 (729)
Others HAit 214 248
10,167 822
Discontinued operations EIc: fud k-8
Interest from bank deposits BIAFHRMEHA 258 350
Gross rental income HK$622,000 BMEES WARYG22,000T
{2006; HK$715,000) from properties (ZFFNFE  H¥71500057)
less direct operating expenses HEEEEE N 486 418
Others Hib 183 792
927 1,560
11,094 2,382

CCHEVALEER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED H = Z T &2 B # B 2 ﬁl)
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7 Other Gains/(Losses), Net 7 Hiblzs, (BE) FH#
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
HUEELEH KRNEREY &
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

CRRLE CRPAF ZRVREF ZTIRF CRRLE CREAF
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'C00  HKS'000  HKS'000
AMTR  A%Tr A%TR  ENTR  ENTR  A%TR

Unrealised gainsiosses) on fIEMBIAZR
derivative financial instruments QRBHE/(BR) - - 1,715 (2,882) 1,715 {2,882)
Impairment losses on AHENRRY '
available-for-sale investments HEER {1.473) {2,466) - - {1,473) {2,466)
{Provision)fwritten back of LA
provision for impaizment () /o8B
of receivables - - {12} 1,983 {12) 1,983
Exchange gains, net ERkEESE 2,257 358 135 2,396 2,392 2,754
Net gain on disposal of HEREMELA
properties for sale B4 - - - 4,352 - 4,392
Impairment loss on amount —MEELARY
due from an zssociate ERZHEBH - - (280) {1.745) {280) (1,745)
increase in fair value of RANEZIRRE
investment properties #hn - - 737 160 737 190
Reversal of accruals and ERBRREMER
other payables R 2,066 - 1,597 404 3,663 404
Others Hib - {157) - 1,507 - 1,350
2,850 (2,265) 3,892 6.245 5,742 3,980
8 Finance Costs 8 MIFEHR
Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Total
HERERS FHEABBER &t
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

ZRRLE —EBTAF ZRRLE _EFAF -BRLE _FF5F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$:000
AMFRL B¥TL AMTR #BETRn HRTR BT

Interest on bank borrowings and ARTEREE
overdrafts wholly repayable Mz B/AER
within five years RERHE 4,557 3,824 561 82 5,118 3,906

(R T ZHEER A M A T CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMH’ED)
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9 Profit Before Taxation 9 BR %A & A
Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Tota!
FREEER ERpE9EE CH)
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
ZRRtE ZBFARE -8RLE —Z2ERE —8%tLF —BIRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK5'0C0 HK$'000 HK$"000
AMTn BMTR AMTR #B¥Tn BRTr BETn
Profit before taxation has been BERAHENE
arrived at after charging/ kg (5 A)
{crediting) the following: FHIEE:
Amortisation of prepaid lease AR R EE 3
payments - - 184 251 184 251
Auditars’ remuneration ERAHESE 805 779 34 307 1,146 1,086
Depreciation on property, plant Wi HBEERR
and equipment i) 17,352 10,592 1,800 1,829 19,152 12,421
Net losses/{gains) on disposals HENE - BER
of property, plant BEzEES
and equipmant ()38 151 686 {8} (1,037} 143 (351)
Operating lease payments in BRUBO/EF
respact of leasing of premises BREXH
- minimum lease payments - BERARE 55,787 37,363 5,134 4,906 60,921 42,269
~ contingent rent Ltk 7.476 4,616 - - 1.476 4,616
Reversal of impairment loss on RERNESREY
prepaid lease payments HESBH - - - (107) - (107)
Staff casts fnote) BTRE (%) 53,388 36,801 75,912 75420 129,300 112,221
Write-down of inventories to HAFEEFTER
net realisable value B - - 2,432 1,000 2,432 1,000
Note; Details of directors’ emoluments included in staff costs Hi: GRMSCHAGTIRY « SR
are disclosed in note 34, 3R E -
Included in staff costs are an amount of HK$17,000 ATHXSPEENO IR

(2006: HK$6,000) in respect of redundancy payments
made to staff and the net amount of HK$4,926,000
(2006: HK$4,892,000) in respect of contributions to
retirement benefit schemes, after forfeited contributions.

(CHEVALlER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED B = Z & £ kR 7 B =2 ﬁ])
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10 Income Tax Expenses 10 TS 2 B
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
BEEBER FROOBER &t
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

ZRREF “EERAF -BRLE ZREAE ZRVLE —ERRE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKY'000
AMTR  AMTL E®TR  RRTR  BMTA  ENTR

Current tax AFEEHE
Hong Kong i 403 2,528 - 735 403 3,263
Overseas & - - 909 318 909 318
403 2,528 909 1,053 1,312 3,581
Defesred taxation BEHA 1,602 296 {52} (15} 1,550 281
2,005 2,824 857 1,038 2,862 3,862
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 17.5% FAENG BB ES B RIEHAT NS
{2006: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits after iz EEBHERERE17 % (28R
offsetting losses brought forward of each individual company. ANE175%)5HH -
Qverseas taxation is calculated based on the rates applicable EHOMBEDEBE R Z AR RESERBE
to the relevant local legislation on the estimated assessable FBRZHEHHE -
profits.
Details of deferred taxation are disclosed in note 32. EEREZ BRI H328E -
The tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the profit FARETHERRERSRERIFZEH
before taxation per consolidated income statement as follows: Hig MR mT -
2007 2006
bt 3 - R —BERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BMTF BT
Profit before taxation R B A e
Continuing operations HFEREER 24,687 20,064
Discontinued operations ERARBER 11,836 20,764
36,523 40,828
Adjust for: Share of results of associates BB FRERE AR (955} -
35,568 40,828
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of EHAREHEI17.5%4H
17.5% (2006: 17.5%) BEH(-EFANE  17.5%) 6,224 7,145
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses THAMBEHBBERER 1,224 4,149
Tax effect of non-taxable income BASHRAZBEBEEE (3.187) (2,962)
Tax effect of unrecognised deductible FAHETHRGENEEEREA
temporary differences and tax losses BRoHBER (1.377) (4,383)
Others H fih (22) (87)
Tax charge for the year FERHE 2,862 3,862

(R t B E 2 KR B B % @ CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED }
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11 Dividends 11 iR E
2007 2006
—R8tE —EFRE
HK$'000 HK$ 000
AT BETT
interim dividend of 2.5 HK cents ERPHRSTR
{2006: 3.0 HK cents) per share, paid 258l —BeNE
3.071) 4,754 5,141
Final dividend of 4.0 HK cents BERERLTE
(2006: 5.0 HK cents) per share, proposed 40BN (ZFERE -
5.0 W) 8,622 8,568
13,376 13,709

12

A final dividend for the year ended 31st March 2007 of 4.0
HK cents per share, totalling HK$8,622,000 (2006: 5.0 HK
cents per share, totalling of HK$8,568,000), has been
propased by the directors of the Company and is subject to
the approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual
general meeting. This proposed dividend has not been dealt
with s dividend payable as at 31st March 2007,

Earnings Per Share

From continuing and discontinued operations:

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the
consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31st March 2007 of
HK$33,661,000 (2006: HK3$36,966,000) by the weighted
average number of shares in issue during the year of
181,296,693 shares (2006: 171,355,871 shares).

As there was no potential dilutive share, diluted earnings per
share equal the basic earnings per share,

(CHEVAHER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED R = ZE T B B B R © ?])

FRARHEEEREREE-_FRLE=A=
+—BIEFEZRHERLTRA0EN -
RAEWSE22,000L(—HESF - BS.0E
il - B AENES568,000T)  AFEBRER
RERFEEEAS L HEATET - ZRIE
BER_ERLE=ZA=+—HEkXELE
fTRBEE -

Eia ¥
RERARIEGRBEER
BRERBMZAHDUBRE_FELF=
R=+-BHItEEZXARRERAAENS
BRABMAENIZE61,000E(ZFRAE B
5 36,966,0007T) BR A T B 1T IE F 198
¥ 181,296,693 (B F R~ &F
171,355,8710%) &1 5% -

mATEELRAN  FRBYBMNERE
i e T
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Earnings Per Share (continued)

From continuing operations:

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the
consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company from continuing operations for the year ended 31st
March 2007 of HK$22,682,000 (2006: HK$17,240,000) by
the weighted average number of shares in issue during the
year of 181,296,693 shares (2006: 171,355,871 shares).

As there was no potential dilutive share, diluted earnings per
share from continuing operations equal the basic earnings

per share from continuing operations.

From discontinued operations:

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the
consolidated profit attrihutable to equity holders of the
Company from discentinued operations for the year ended
31st March 2007 of HK$10,979,000 {2006: HK$19,726,000Q)
by the weighted average number of shares in issue during
the year of 181,296,693 shares (2006: 171,355,871 shares).

As there was no potential dilutive share, diluted earnings per
share from discontinued operations equal the basic earnings

per share from discontinued operations.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders
of the Company

Proiit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent
of HK$56,023,000 (2006: HK$16,399,000).

14 Discontinued Operations

Cn 12th March 2007, the Company entered into an
agreement to dispose of the Group's operations relating to
computer and information communication technology (the
“Disposal”). The Board of Directors consider that the Disposal
realigns the Group’s business focus and resources in food
and beverages business and is in line with the Group's
business strategy. Details of the Disposal are disclosed in
note 42.

12 B8 en

XERRASEARK .
BREXRNZHEDURBE_$RLE=
AZ+—HILFEREHAREER 240
FIARIEEE A (SRS 5% 22,682,000
TL{ZFFE - B%17,240,00070) BRUAE
AEBTNETI9#181,296,693R (=ZF
FTINE 171,355,871V EHE -

RRERESERNR  RENOEEREREL
FREMEMNERTERASEEH ISR
HEEBF -

REFHKTE R
ERETANZHAEDLBE_EF+E=
A=+ B FEEXEEMOEEEBIE
CEABREREARGCESRAES
10,979,0007T (ZFB7NF ¢« #%19,726,000
TIBRNUKNEARAECBRTNEFTHRE
181,296,693 (ZFF A : 171,355,871
B&)ETEL o

BRIEASEBIN - KEERREBERD
2ERBYAMERFOFFRNBEEBY
BRETRGF -

13%@?&%%EA%EE

STATATIHBBRZACTRERGAR
{H3 M BB %56,023.000 L (—BENRE H#
#16,399,0007T) ©

4R ERERR

RIRRELE=ZR+=ZA  RAREHI—H
Wk - R EM WL ERBEREEE
MEK(THED -HEERS - HGHER
PEEENEBIABEREER  ERA
REZEBRE B - HEZHERAE
BE -

(R T T AR B MR LT CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS lIMITED)
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14 Discontinued Operations (continued)

The results and cash flows of the discontinued operations

included in the consolidated income statement and the

consolidated cash flow statement are set out below.

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains, net
Bistribution costs
Administrative expenses

Operating profit

Finance costs

Profit befare taxation
Income {ax expenses

Profit for the year from discontinued

operations

Net cash inflow/(cutflow} from
operating activities

Net cash {outflow)/inflow from
investing activities

Net cash inflow from financing activities

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from

discontinued operations

UFFBEEEH o
BAGSKHEREARSRDENZ KR
AEEEBEREAGRRZFMT -

2007 2006
—R9LF ZEREARE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET R BETIT
U 28 491,654 545,412
HEEE (435,765) {483,029)
£H 55,889 62,383
Hiblr A 927 1,560
Hib W38 3,892 6,245
EHEE (44,220} (44,035)
FTE X (4,091) (5,307}
AR 12,397 20,846
it H {561) (82)
B £ A i T 11,836 20,764
FRigHEY (857) (1,038)
HEFERERERY
Byl 10,979 19,726
KABYEREzRE
RAS R BE 1,787 (7,197
BHREBELZHS
() mABRE (778) 510
MAEBELEZRESREA
gl 9,000 -
FEFFREBERZ
BEmA/ GRE) 34 10,009 (6.687)

(CHEVAI.IER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED H + 3T = & B 1 R & ﬁ)
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KR-RRLE=A=+—8 SEARHZ
ERAEBEBIAZRAREEARM

14 Discontinued Operations (continued)
The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the
discontinued operations classified as held for sale at 31st

March 2007 are as follows: T
HKS$'000
RETR
Non-current assets classified as held for sale PHEARELEZERBRE
Investment properties "EMH 7.950
Property, plant and equipment mE - -EERRMG 14,274
Prepaid lease payments mtASRE 2,014
Inventories T 49,054
Debtors, deposits and prepayments BEHGER  FHESEBHARE 67,114
Income tax recoverable al f [E AT i 438
Derivative financial instruments HTEMBETE 1,747
Bank balances and cash equivalents RIIEERREESHE 28,738
Other assets Hit A E 150
Total At 171,479
Liabilities directly associated with EEBSHEBRHELHGZEFDTE
non-current assets classified as held for sale HEWzBMA
Creditors, bills payables, deposits EFHER  ERARE - TAESR
and accruals EERA 79,157
Deferred income ¥R HE M A 16,857
Provision for taxation R 910
Bank borrowings RITHAK 9,000
Other liabilities Hftt A a5
Total B 105,969

(aizs‘zgﬂﬁmﬂacmmusk

PACIFIC

HOLDINGS LIMITED)
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15 Investment Properties 15REME
The Group
Em
2007 2006
—getF CRFERFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BAMTn BT
At 1st April wmA—-H 7.120 5,160
Exchange realignment ELTE 93 -
Transferred from property, plant and BREDE  BEREH
equipment - 690
Transferred from prepaid lease payments HRAEBEFAEAERNE - 1,080
Increase in fair value anEsm 737 190
At 31st March B=A=+—8 7,950 7.120
Reclassified as held for sale ENSRARBELE (7,950) -
- 7,120
All the Group’s investment properties were held for the FEBAMEHREYMEYSEEMMBERH
purpose of earning rental income or for capital appreciation FEEZE B EENL -
and are measured using the fair value model.
The Group's investment properties are located in Mainland ERE7REPEURDERE - BW+ER
China and are held under medium-term leases of 10 to 50 TEFHBAHRESE -
years,
The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31st SERBEDER_SR+E=A=+—8
March 2007 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation ZRRE THEBLHREEREEMYE
carried out on that date by Messrs. DTZ Debenham Tie Leung RAHRAFPKRERMEZFEREBEER
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer, and Pl EBHEEL -

was arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction

prices for similar properties.

(CHEVA[IER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED H + T T g B 7 R 2 ﬁl)
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16 Property, Plant and Equipment 16 % - BER&B
The Group Aem
Furniture,
fixtures, office
Overseas Machinery, Store equipment
properties on tooland  machine and and motor
Buildings  freehold land equipment equipment vehicles Total
H6-RE-
Bika BB I4 P31 BLERR
#5 E3 4k 4 hES Rtk RAHE st
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 Hx 3000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI A8TR A%t ABTR RETR RETR
Cost KA
At st April 2005 BZ9YL%E
mE-H 5427 9,899 9,761 - 12,99 38078
Exchange realignment ELOE b1 3% 13 180 3 275
Acquisition ¢f subsidiares EREERE - - - 26,168 - 26,168
Additions 3Ty - - 560 15,808 126 16,494
Disposals bl (680) - (1,256) 2,792 (1,091) (5,819)
Transferred 10 investment properties BREZEANE {841) - - - - (841)
At 315t March 2006 BR-BFAE
=A=t-18 3930 9,934 4,078 39,364 12,049 74,355
Exchange realignment EfGQR 202 1,158 366 143 607 3,076
Additions i - - 750 43,374 2,507 46,631
Disposals HE - - (701} {7,423 1328) (8,452)
Reclassitied as held for sale ERFRARIELE {4138 (11,092} {9,493} - {12,204 (36,521)
Al 315t March 2007 Ro99LF
=A=+-8 - - - 76,058 2,631 78,689
Accumulated depreciation e
AL Tt Agril 2005 RoBLE
mA-8 1,605 1,650 8,394 - 4,986 21,635
Exchange realignment EiGR 7 6 % - 30 68
Charge for the year FEKE 182 124 833 10,568 T4 12421
Disposals HE n3) - {1,101) (2,084) (951) {4,249}
Transferred to investment properties HRTRANE {151) - - - - (151}
At 3151 March 2006 RZFRAE
ZA=t+-H 1,530 1,780 3,151 8,484 9,719 29724
Exchange realignment Eige 142 216 345 422 538 1,660
Charge for the year EEHR 158 130 435 17,308 1,120 19,152
Disposals e - - {670) {7,103) (317 8,090)
Reclassified as held for sale BERABANMFLE {1,830) {2.126) {8.261) - (10,430 {22,547
At 31st March 2007 R-9REE
Zf=+-H - - - 18,112 587 19,799
Carrying value GEE
Al 315t March 2007 RZZRLF
ZH=t-# - - - 56,9460 1,944 58,890
AL 315t March 2006 RZ8%R
ZF=t+-E 2,400 8,i5%4 921 30,880 2210 44,631

(R + Z 2 E B B B 2 &8 CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS I.IMITED)
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16 Property, Plant and Equipment 16 WE - WEMKZEw®
(continued)
The Company raH
Motor vehicie
AE
HK$'000
AEET T
Cost A
At 1st April 2005, 31st March 2006 RoFZLHAFM™MA—A -
and 31st March 2007 —EEARE=ZAZt+—BR
—EBt+F¥=A=+—-E 348
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE
At 1st April 2005 KRoBRRAFME—H 227
Charge for the year E=FiH 24
At 31st March 2006 BoBBANE=-RA=TH 251
Charge for the year FEFH 43
At 31st March 2007 R_ERLH#=-RA=Z+—F 294
Carrying value tREE
At 31st March 2007 RIBELF=A=+—8 54
At 37st March 2006 R-IFEANH¥-A=Z+—E 97

{ CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED H + 2 & £ B & B & ﬁj
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17 Prepaid Lease Payments

The Group’s prepaid lease payments

comprise:

Leasehold land in Hong Kong under
medium-term lease

Leasehold land outside Hong Keng:
Long-term |ease

Short-term lease

The movements in the Group’s prepaid lease payments during

the year are analysed as follows:

At 1st April

Exchange realignment
Disposals

Reversal of impairment loss
Amortisation

Transferred to investment properties

Reclassified as held for sale

At 31st March

17 AN EERE

2007 2006
—B8tE ZBEAE
HKS$’000 HK$ 000
BWT R BETT
TEMEMAEERERE
REENPHRANE
Bt 1,329 1,490
REHENZERE LI 0 B
BHENKSE 631 642
EHENEE 54 60
2,014 2.192

AW ANAEREREEE 2 BB oW

WmF
2007 2006
—getsE —BESF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT EETT
REOA-—-B 2,192 4,115
EHLBE 6 29
o - (728)
oz HESR - 107
B (184) (251)
HEZIRADE - (1,080)
2,014 2,192
EFoEARELY (2,014) -
®»=A=Z+—8 - 2,192

(R + 5 IE & M 7 R 2 8§ CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS {IMITED)
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18 Interests in Subsidiaries 18 T B Rl 2%
{a) Interests in subsidiaries (a) Fi{5MiMoRz@Ex
The Company
EAE
2007 2006
| —sRtLE “EEA
: HK$'000 HK$°000
| BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost FE LW - AR AEH 115,669 116,281
Amounts due from subsidiaries EWE B A RIER 191,636 295,069
Less: Accumulated impairment losses W B EEER (4,992) (144,823)
302,313 266,527
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free, BERHBLARRASERALGIE &
and has no pre-determined repayment terms. EEMBIEE -
Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries at 315t March HEN-_FERLEZR=+—HBZ+EHB
2007 are set out in note 43. REZHGMAK TS
(b} Amounts due from/to subsidiaries (b) MW P D B R
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- RERGHEB AT ERE - Bl EAER
free, and are repayable on demand. AFERAEEFREFE - EREREMN
g .
19 Goodwill and Trademark 19EEBELBE
Goodwill Trademark Total
ks AE &5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RETR BT T AT

At 1st April 2005 R-_EFRAFEWMA—B8 - - -
Acqguisition of subsidiaries W PR BT /B A 7 82,392 108,000 190,392
At 31st March 2006 BR-ZFEAE-HA=1+—8 82,392 108,000 190,392

Adjustment arising from the finalisation FABEMsEMES
of purchase price allocation 2 1,618 - 1,618

At 31st March 2007 RIBBLF=A=+—8 84,010 108,000 192,010

(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLRINGS LIMITED H £ 2 Z 2 B & B 2 '51)
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19 Goodwill and Trademark (continued)

The trademark was purchased as part of a business
combination. The directors are of the opinion that the upkeep
of the trademark is at minimal cost and the Group would
renew the trademark continuously. Various studies including
market trends and competitability of similar food and
beverages market have been performed by management of
the Group, which supports that there is no foreseeable time
limit over which the branded coffee shops are expected to

generate cash flows for the Group.

The trademark is consigered by the management of the Group
as having an indefinite useful life. The trademark will not be
amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite upon
reassessment of its useful life annually by the management.
Instead, it will be tested for impairment annually and
whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired.
Particulars of impairment testing are disciosed in note 4(a)

and below.

Impairment tests for goodwill and trademark

Goodwill and trademark is allocated to the Group's food and
beverages segment. Its recoverable amount is determined
based on its fair value less costs to sell. These calculations
use post-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a one-year period. Cash
flows beyond the one-year period are extrapolated using a
growth rate of 20% per annum up to the fifth year and with
a terminal value related to the future earnings potential of
this segment beyond the fifth year, gross margin of 74%
and a discount rate of 15%.

Management determined budgeted growth rate and gross
margin based on past performance. The discount rates used

are past-tax and reflect specific risks relating to this segment.

OFELREEw
BARET RGBS —R - GHRA
R R - T S A
R ABAREEEEREUT KA
FENEG I T ENEERF NS HE B
BEES BN E AR AASEEAES
S AR R B 3 TR R

FEHERERLR BUEAERTERT
- REEFHREEEEFEMNFHERAE
REBERBTAEGRAIERFS  TRPT
EHBEE Kh - BEDESERLRATRE
REFREETRENS RENSZER
RET i aE) BT OREE -

HREEE2HENS
EHEREIETTRBERRESE &
ThEABERIEE DL ERIEERSmE
Ee-HBCHECRAEERE —F 8
BREHERSREERN - —FHER
EHBABERREFEN%REELFRSE
SOBAFEZRRMEES  EFHE74%
R R sl MIRKEATEN -

ERBNRBATHEAHERACEREERE
Flz - -mAEAZRREAREZNE 8
RUMEsBRZRERE -

(H + F & 2 B B B & & CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LlMlTED)
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20 Interests in Associates 20 PR Bt & el 2 #E S
The Group The Company
oW AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
—28tFE ZEEREF Z8%LF —FEEXRE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BRTT AETIL AW BT

At 1st April WmEE—H - - - -
Acquisition of associates L B Bk 4 2 ) 61,137 - 61,137 -
Share of profit FE A 35 R 955 - - -
At 315t March R=AR=+-—8 62,092 - 61,137 -
Interests in associates at 31st March 2007 include goodwill R-EE+F=ZA=Z1T—8H - BiEBHEQA
of HK$46,939,000. Z e R E B A 46,939,000 -

(a) The Group’s interest in its principal associates, all of which (8) THEERIETHELT(HEENTG) o2&

are unlisted, were as follows: FEWMT s
Country of % Interest
Name incgrporation Assets  Liabilities  Revenue Profit held Principal activities
PR R
£ B2 BR BE A & BF ZESHE TEER
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK3'C0O
BETR #¥TR B¥ETT BETR
2007
ZERLE
Sinochina Enterprises British Virgin 71,500 40,575 27,854 1,949 49 nvestment helding
Limited* Islznds in operations of
HBELES . restaurants
HEYE
Guangzhou Chevalier iTech Mainland 945 4,476 1,367 g7 24 Trading of office
Limited? China equipment and
BHETHEER2A B EAR provision of
maintenance
services
BLZRERS
ERUFRERS

(CHEVAUER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED BK £ F © % B & M o a)
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20 Interests in Associates (continued)

{b)

20 FRfh Bt E N A 2 HE % o

Country of % interest
Name incorporation Assets  Lfabiliies  Revenue Loss held Principal activities
Mg
e BT zBR BE RfA L§21 BR zE5L TEEH
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK§'000
BETR ®BMTr B¥ETL BETR
2005
ZEENE
Guangzhou Chevalier iTech Mainland 832 4,282 1,633 58 24 Trading of office
Limited* China equipment and
RMETHERBERF o+ 8 kit provision of

* Sinochina Enterprises Limited {"SEL") is directly held by the

Company. The principal subsidiaries of SEL are New Global
{H.K.) Limited , Grand Concept (Hong Kong) Limited, Giant
Qcean (H.K.) Limited and Pacific York {H.K.) Limited, which
are incorporated in Hong Kong and operate restaurants in
Hong Kong.

The Group did not recegnise the results of Guangzhou
Chevalier iTech Limited because they are immaterial.
Guangzhou Chevalier iTech Limited is indirectly held by the
Company.

Acquisition of an associate

(b)

During the year, the Group entered into an agreement ta

acquire SEL from Sinochina Pacific Limited, an independent

third party, for a maximum consideration of HK$200 million.

The acquisition is transacted in two phases. The acguisition

of the first 49% equity interest in SEL was completed during

the year and the acquisition of the remaining 51% equity

interest in SEL will be completed in 2009 (refer to note 37).

maintenance
Services
BEERERS
ERHERERS

*  Sinochina Enterprises Limited ([SEL]) B2
RAAERE - SELZEEMB LR
E(EHE)ERLT - BE (FE)ARD
g B (EE)ERLRRER(BE) S
BAar - YREEEARY  FEFHE
BHES -

* EAEEREMAETHEER AR R
THE BHIFRERARE - BRMAL
HERRARASLEMERSE -

WR—RBELA
FR EAMEZBBRUEBYIESA
Sinochina Pacific LimitedlA 7~ %8 i@ & ¥
200,000,0007T 2 £ [RULBBSEL - ZBHEB S
PR TT o WIBEH49% SELREBERF R
SRR MM ERTS1% SELARIBEI R _ BT

NERK - (S8HE37

(ﬁiﬁiﬂﬂiﬁﬂﬂ

o
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20 Interests in Associates «ontinued) 20 FT{E B 2 2 8] 2 B 25 )

The share of net assets arising from the acguisition is analysed

as follows:

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current habilities

Non-current liabilities

FRBEE
RBHEE
meAE
FRBEE

The goodwill is attributable to the significant synergies

expected to arise from the integration of the busiress of SEL

and the existing food and beverages business of the Group.

(CHEVAlIER PACIFIC HOIDINGS LIMITED H + 3 T # B § B

7

>

{b) Acquisition of an associate (continued) (b) WHB—REEQT @
Details of the goodwill and share of net assets of SEL acquired THERRA N NEELEESREZHBm
are as follows: T
HK$'000
ERTR
Purchase consideration BERR
- cash -HE 42,777
— estimated consideration payable —JEMAE 14,837
57,614
Transaction costs directly attricutable to EEEANEZ
the acquisition ZEERE 3,523
Less: Fair value of net assets acquired WoRBEEFEsORE (14,198)
Goodwill Sk 46,939

RABBELZ SEREREIFNOT -

Fair value Carrying value
DRfE R E
HK$:000 HK$'000
BETT BETL
15,536 10,519
15,880 15,880
{14,376} (14,376)
(2,842) (1,964)
14,198 10,059

A HGESHEBREAERRT 2@ RER
BEEZHARBEHAZERNGRME-
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20 Interests in Associates (continued)

(¢) Impairment tests for goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the associate's food and beverages
segment. Its recoverable amount is determined based o its
fair value less costs to sell. These calculations use post-tax
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a one-year period. Cash ffows
beyand the one-year period are extrapolated using a growth
rate of 20% per annum up to the fifth year and with a
terminal value related to the future earnings of this segment
beyond the fifth year, gross margin of 79% and a discount
rate of 15%.

Management determined budgeted growth rate and gross
margin based on past performance. The discount rates used

are post-tax and reflect specific risks relating to this segment.

21 Available-for-sale Investments

Available-for-sale investments as at 31st March comprise:

20 FTiE B & A R 2 B 7

© BRZAGHR
ARSRTHELRREHHF « KK
ABENEAL A BREERATMAE « 4
WA LR SR AR F UGS
IRARERAAN  —EHEZRERR
DR BB EEN%ERTTRAEH
E Al REWHE A - THE79% RS
£ 159% M 2 WA AR -

EHEDEATRAMERAZERERSE
FlE MR 2RREAME ZFE B
RMESBEIEERR -

21 A HEMNIRE

REZAZ+—HTHENRESRE:

2007 2006
—RBLF “RENEF
HK$'000 HK$°000
T T BETT
Unlisted equity securities, at cost EmEZRARES - AR

less impairment (note} R RENH (M) 1,497 2,270

Investrment in a venture capital fund, RERESFZIRE  BROAA
at fair value irE 7,750 7,750
9,247 10,020

Note: Bt

It is measured at cost less impairment at each balance sheet date
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directars are of the opinion that fair value

cannot be measured reliably.

mrAREcAEzBEESE R BEERR
RAEEBRTRNYE  MASREAEREA
Bl (EETE -

CE:!:EEEE

B H B 2 @ CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED)
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22 Investments at Fair Value through 22 RERKREARBEREDN
Profit or Loss wE
The Group The Company
Em PN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—@RLE -—ToAE —RVLE —TEA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

B¥Tx BT Wt EET T

Listed investments: HREEE
— debt securities, ~BEEH -
listed overseas BarET 24,278 31,430 - -
- equity securities, —RAEFH
listed in Hong Kong EyELm 7,873 - 94 -
— equity securities, -BAEEH
listed overseas poge i) - 4,553 - -
32,152 35,983 94 -
Unlisted investments: EBEHEEE
- debt securities —BHHEF 29,990 37.296 - -
— structured deposits —#EATR 51,320 49,588 14,841 13,810
81,310 86,884 14,841 13,810
Total Bat 113,462 122,867 14,935 13,810
Analysed for reporting EMBERRARY
purpases: S|
Non-current assets ERHEE 51,320 49,588 14,841 13,810
Current assets RBAE 62,142 73,279 94 -
113,462 122,867 14,935 13,810
The fair values of the listed investments are determined based EREEEr aENEIEREIMNERY
on the quoted market bid price available an the refevant MHEEEMEE  mMERERERSEHSE
exchanges and the unlisted investments are determined by Memggr REWET -

reference to quoted prices from the relevant financial

institutions.

(CHEVAL!ER PACIFEC HOLDINGS LIMITED H = Z Z 2 R 5 B 2 7/
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22 Investments at Fair Value through 22 REZRZEALERIEXN
Profit or LOSS (continued) A o)

The carrying amounts of investments at fair value through PRRERROAEEENRERBESD T
profit or loss are denominated in the following currencies: EEHE

The Group The Company
Fam & 5H

2007 2006 2007 2006

—88LFE —ETRFE CBRLE ZEESE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'G00

BEWT EET T BETR ik i

Hong Kong dollars i 7.874 9,931 94 -
United States dollars ET 105,588 112,936 14,841 13,810
113,462 122,867 14,935 13,810

. e

23 Inventories 23FE
2007 2006
—RetF TBRREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT EETR
Inventories held for resale #ETE 47,137 57,580
.Consumable stores ERWH 8,814 9,411
55,951 66,991
Reclassified as held for sale B IHABFELE (49,054) -
6,897 66,991
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included BEARAYCBERFHERTNZZEN
in cost of sales amounted to HK$416,302,000 (2006: BENA6,302,0000L (ZRFAF - %
HK$424,540,000), of which HK$351,152,000 {2006: 424,540,0005T) & &% 351,152,000 (=
HK$377,959,000) are related to discontinued operations. FTNE - $%377,959,0007) BIEHHEE

BEBAMY-

Cﬁ T Z E 2 R A MR A & CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS L[MGTED)
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24 Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments 24 FEINIESR - FIRige K TE
< 5RR
The Group The Company
EM LN
2007 2006 2007 2006
88 tE —TERF ZBBRBLE —ETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'C00

BYTR BET T BEWT T ARTT

Trade debtors FE W B 3R 49,476 59,222 - -

Less: Accumulated W RWMEEER
impairment losses (1,942) (2,596) - -
47,534 56,626 - -

QOther debtors, deposits and HEfhfEdoEst - 71

prepayments HERBEMKE 63,777 54,802 550 650
111,311 111,428 550 650
Reclassified as held for sale BN AEBHELE (67,114} - - -
44,197 111,428 550 650
Analysed for reporting EMBEHEEREZ
purposes: FH
Non-current assets FnEEE 19,498 17,104 - -
Current assets MEEE 24,699 94,324 550 650
44,197 111,428 550 650
The Group has established different credit policies for AEEEHEARLESEIEFCRIEES
customers in each of its core businesses. The average credit EEHEE BSTEUEZRZEAHEEHA
period granted to trade debtors is 60 days except for sales of K EWMGEEZEREESAFEURGHE
food and beverages at coffee shops which are mainly on H -
cash basis.

(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOIDINGS LIMITED H * Z E & R & R 2 "ﬂ)
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24 Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments 24 FEURIR SR~ FHHIES RIB

En)

(continued) ’[Tj A IE\ {#1)

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade debtors at the RTATRAREEAZBRERZIBHS
balance sheet date is as follows: i

2007 2006
—8RtF —RIRAF
HK$000 RK$°000
R T BT R
0 - 60 days 0—60X 38,458 49,348
61 - 90 days 61—90K 3,892 2,533
Over 90 days #90K 5,184 4,745
47,534 56,626

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars
Thailand Baht
Other currencies

trade debtors are

e
F ik
Hin¥ ™

The carrying amounts of the Group’s debtors, deposits and

prepayments at 3tst March 2007 approximate their fair values.

FHEBREEZRZEEELATHEE AR

{if :
2007 2006
—RE+tLF _BERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFR BET T
30,685 39,965
13,747 11,681
3,102 4,980
47,534 56,626

EEAR-FELFIAZST—BZRLE
¥ HFHESREMREIREEAREDR

HEE -

(R T Z 5 E R W M A R CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED )
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25 Amount due from/to Ultimate Holding
Company
The amount due from/to ultimate holding company are
unsecured, interest-free, and are repayable on demand. The
carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

26 Derivative Financial Instruments
Dwiing the year, the Group used foreign currency forward
contracts to hedge against certain of its trade creditors and
purchase commitment that were denominated in foreign
currencies. These derivatives did not qualify for hedge

accounting.

At 31st March 2007, the Group had entered into foreign
currency forward contracts denominated in United States
dolfars with total notional amount of HK$169,900,0C0 (2006:
HK$58,200,000).

All derivatives of the Group are measured at fair value at
each balance sheet date. Their fair values are determined
based on the market prices for equivalent instruments guoted
by the counterparties at the balance sheet date and from the
financial models based an principal sum and estimate about
future market conditions.

CCHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED R = Z Z & B F R 4

25 %H&/ﬁﬁﬁﬁszm%

Rl BHBRERARZGRARER
LFBERERGTE - REMBERAERAR
EHE -

HER TR
FA-FREASHANERSHYMRE
TLOMESE B AREBEAG - BE
ETAYTHEHPZHEEH -

—EFtFZAZ+—8 - FHWMETK
ERAEMEERSH  HATRKSRAE
¥ 169,900,000 (T E : EH
58,200,0007T) »

AEEEHTETAOREHFNAUAAHE
SH - BEAABEDKESHFRENANRE
BHETAZMRERESERBRAAGE
AHZEHEAMEE -
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27 Bank Balances and Cash Equivalents 27T BTHEEFEREEFE

Bank balances and cash equivalents comprise cash held, short- RTLEGTRBRESELERBARS  RIEH
term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months AEA=EARUAZRHETHFRREIFA
or less and cash held in financial institutions’ accounts. The MEBEFOZRE  -ZFEFER_BTL
carrying amounts of these assets at 31st March 2007 FZA=1+-—BZBREERALAHBEES -

approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of bank balances and cash equivalents RITBERASSEZREAAMTESEH
are denominated in the following currencies: #:
The Group The Company
FEM =R
2007 2006 2007 2006
—8QtFE ZFBRE ZR8tE Z—ZFFREF
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT BETT BT R BETR

Hong Kong dollars FEWE 55,981 29,699 12,192 2,729
United States dollars o 36,269 32,825 2,983 12,670
Thailand Baht 3 &k 10,990 1,603 19 17
Australian dollars o 6,388 15 - -
Renminbi AE® 2,904 3,017 - -
Other currencies Ribfr % 4,456 5,240 21 18

116,988 72,399 15,215 15,434
Reclassified as held for sale HHOTHEARBMELHE (28,738) - - -

88,250 72,399 15,215 15,434
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was HHRTERZBERELERAIA%(ZFE
3.4% (2006: 3.8%) per annum; these deposits have an NE:D 38%) c REFRTFHIRAHME SO
average maturity of 4 days (2006: 6 days). B{(Z2®F XA) -

‘ H T ZZTBE R T M 2 T CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOCLDINGS LlMITED)
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28 Creditors, Bills Payable, Deposits and

28

FE IR K

BNER -+

Accruals ARERENER
The Group The Company
TEW LT
2007 2006 2007 2006
—BRtFE Z—ZETFRFEF ZReLtE —EBFAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HBY T pig: AT AEETT
Trade creditors and bills EHERR
payable EERE 64,626 34,416 - -
Other creditors, deposits HibERH - TA
| and accruals EeREMNERA 48,526 42629 18,238 4,927
: Estimated consideration W RBSELY a5t
| payable in respect of R A
' acquisition of SEL 14,837 - - -
' 127,989 77,045 18,238 4,927
Reclassified as held for sale EFRoRARKMELSE (79,157) - - -
48,832 77,045 18,238 4,927

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade creditors and bills

REFEFERZ BNERERAREZIE

payable at the balance sheet date is as follows: BoiTmT
The Group
g1
2007 2006
—getH —BRAE
HKS'000 HK$'000
BT R YT
0 - 60 days 0 —60X% 61,845 31,166
61 — 90 days 61 —90K 1,129 333
Over 90 days i 20X 1,652 2,917
Trade creditors and bills B REEARE
payable 64,626 34,416

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade creditors and bills

2 B EE N KR RIE 2 REE T

payable are denominated in the following currencies: H¥etE
2007 2006
—gRtHF ZEFBREF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BWMTT BT
Hong Kong dollars 1 19,261 13,585
United States dollars En 44,478 19,377
Other currencies H it 7% 887 1,454
64,626 34,416

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade creditors, bills SMER-ERCFIAZ T -BZEMNRH
payable and other creditors at 31st March 2007 approximate BoOERMNEELRAMEMER Z2AAEEL
their fair values. NRHEEE -

(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED R = Z & 2 B # R 2 7 }
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29 Bank Borrowings 29 RITE K
2007 2006
—g%9tHF —_FERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BA¥Tx BT
Bank loans WITHER 89,000 101,000
Trust receipt loans EREkEER 9,000 -
98,000 101,000
Reclassified as held for sale BHODELBRELSE (9,000} -
89,000 101,000
The bank lcans are repayable as follows: RITERIETHIFEHMEE
Within one year — R 52,000 52,000
Mare than one year but not —FEBARFEAR
exceeding two years 12,000 12,000
More than two years but not HEEEBETFAR
exceeding five years 25,000 37,000
89,000 101,000
Less: Amount due within one year shown B:oVWARBDEAZ FA
under current liabilities FEER (52,000) (52,000)
37,000 49,000
The bank borrowings are unsecured, bear floating interest RTERAEER  TRIFDIRGFR B
rate at an average effective interest rate of 4.8% (2006: MEHFEFRERISU(ZEFRNE
4.3%) per annum. 4.3%) o
The bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. MITERUAEASHE -
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings at 31st March RZBE+LF=A=+—H ROTBEHRZK
2007 approximate their fair values. mMERE L AEIRE -
The exposure of the bank borrawings to interest-rate changes RUTERFAGRzNESHENEENES
and the contractual repricing dates are six manths or less. BEANEASRLT -

CH * Z & KR B B & A CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED)
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30 Share Capital

Authorised ordinary shares
of HK$0.50 each

At 1st April 2005, 31st March 2006
and 31st March 2007

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
of HK$0.50 each

At 1st April 2005 and 31st March 2006

Issue of share capital

At 31st March 2007

The Company issued 18,800,000 new shares to independent
third parties on 19th September 2006, The net proceeds of

the issue of shares before expenses amounted to

30 B A

SRAEBRREROS0R

R_ZZTHFME—R -
—EERF=ZR=1+—H
E_ZE2LF=A=+—8H

FREEREBEOLSOTE BT
E#RrBEz EEBR

R_FEFHFMA-1
E_ERRE=ZA=+—H
BITHRA

BR-FE+HE=ZH=1+-H

Number of shares HK$'C00
BRHEE HEET T
240,000,000 120,000
171,355,871 85,678
18,800,000 9,400
190,155,871 95,078

ARARRIERAFARTAANBIE=
7 5 1718,800,0000% #rit {0 -~ ITHR {2 FR1Z
RIEREARE LT LA A A 44,744,000

HK$44,744,000. The net proceeds of the issue of shares oo mEREZEBRTXIHENARY

amounted to HK$44,646,000 after deducting the expenses

of the issue.

(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED R + 2 Z # R 5 8 2 f])

44,646,000 -




Notes to the Financial Statements

g
L

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 — LG+ FF 4§

B 75 ¥R 2 Y &t

105

31 Reserves

The Group

At Ist April 2005

Exchange difference on
translation of cperations
of overseas subsidiaries
and an associate

Profit for the year

Total recognised income
and expenses for the year
Dividend paid

At 315t March 2006

Exchange difference on
translation of operations
of overseas subsidiaries
and an associate

Profit for the year

Total recognised income
and expenses for the vear

Dividends paid

Issue of share capital

Share issuance expenses

At 31st March 2007

Note:

The balance represented share premium attributable to subsidiaries

R-PELEFEA-A

BUENIBLAR
—ARERTINER
MEEHELES

FEAN

FEREERRAR
3k
ERER

R-FRAEZAZT-H

BISHAKHRANE
—MEB0A N EE
FEEMERER

FEAN

FEHEHBRAR
MEeH

EfRe

BiTRx

BREBIMR

H-SREF=A=T-H

at the time of restructuring of the Group in 1989.

31 G
F M
Capital Capital  Exchange
Share Reserve  redemption  fluciuation Retaired
premiurn (note) reserve teserve profits Total
AAEA ArEE  EERY
F 1 iR i) £ 3E REEH EH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETI BETr BETT BT BETT BETL
223,434 18,060 14 1,657 52,432 295,597
- - - (287) - (287)
- - - - 36,966 36,366
- - - {287) 36,966 36,679
- - - - {6,854) (6.854})
223,434 18,060 14 1,370 82,544 325,422
- - - 5.079 - 5,079
- - - - 33,661 33,661
- - - 5,079 33,661 38,740
- - - - (13,322) (13,322)
35,344 - - - - 35,344
{98) - - - - (38)
258,680 18,060 14 6,449 102,883 386,086
Bt -

EHREEFRABLDNEMHD  KEFE

ME—AANEZHA -

(H + Z T R R I M S A CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED)
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31 Reserves icontinued) 31 @
The Company y. A
Capital
Share  Contributed  redemption Retained
premium surplus reserye profits Total
AXHE
RiDEE BREG i REHH Cha

HK$'0C0 HK$'000 HK$'000 KK$°000 HK$°000
AT AT AE%TE ABTR BETR

At 1st April 2005 R_FRHR&ENHA—B 223,434 6,226 14 4,676 234,350
Profit for the year FEHEMN - - - 16,399 16,399
Total recognised income FEFCHBYUAR

and expenses for the year R - - - 16,399 16,399
Dividends paid EfTRE - - - (6,854) (6,854)
At 315t March 2006 R-IBERARF

=ZR=+—-H 223,434 6,226 14 14,221 243,895

Profit for the year FERH - - - 56,023 56,023
Total recognised income EEECORAUAR

and expenses for the year B e - - - 56,023 56,023
Dividends paid BB - - - {13,322} (13,322)
Issue of share capital BIRAE 35,344 - - - 35,344
Share issuance expenses BHBITRY {98} - - - (98}
At 31st March 2007 R-FBLE

ZR=+-18 258,680 6,226 14 56,922 321,842

Contributed surpius represents the difference between the EHRMIECERMBARNEESERT
value of net assets of subsidiaries acguired and the nominal ARIRWBREHNB AR MBT ZRMER
amount of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition. BEsHzZ8 - BREGFE-AN—FQF
Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda {as amended), BB - ZRARERARIESETR
the contributed surplus of the Company is availabie for o

distribution to shareholders.

At 31st March 2007, the Company’s reserves available for R-ZBF+FZA=+-0 " FaF6HS
distribution to shareholders amounted to HK$63,148,000 ik FRRR 2 BEEAEY%63,148,000T (28 F
(2006: HK$20,447,000). N A% 20,447,0007T) ¢

(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED H + Z & 2 B & R 2 ﬁ])
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32 Deferred Taxation

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current income
tax assets against current income tax liabilities and when the
deferred income tax relates to the same fiscal authority.

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are as follows:

Accelerated

32 EEFHIB

WA HGESHI T ZEF TS E SR E R
AMEHEHNEHEEREREMERE
WM REAEH BEMERAEERAM
EARIEE -

BEMGHREERAGRSNT

tax Tax
depreciation  Trademark losses Others Total
MEFRANE EiE HEEE b &5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT AETT BETI BEETL
At 1st April 2005 R-ZFERFMHA—A 632 - (466) (85) 80
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B R 835 18,900 (211} - 19,524
Chargedfcredited) to RENEA
income statement neg /Gt A) (325) - 565 40 281
At 31st March 2006 R-FERE
=A=+-H 1,142 18,900 (11) {46) 19,885
Charged/(credited) to RUHERA
income statement g/ GEA) 4,333 - (2,258) {525) 1,550
Reclassified as held for safe B EARELE (2,399) - 2,364 35 -
At 315t March 2007 BRZEBLF
=A=+-8 3,076 18,900 (5) {536) 21,435

At the balance sheet date, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining unused tax losses of
HK$466,827,000 (2006: HK$488,816,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Among those
remaining unused tax losses, HK$196,669,000 are related to
discontinued operations. Included in unrecognised tax losses
are losses of HK$16,226,000 (2006: HK$6,734,000} which
will expire in 2012. Other tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unrecognised
deductible temporary difference of HK$14,780,000 (2006:
HK$16,409,000). Amoeng those unrecegnised deductible
temporary difference, HK$7,525,000 are related to
discontinued operations. Deferred income tax assets have not
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temparary difference
can be utilised.

RETD  aRARBERFERERTZE
ZE TFEMBTAPAPRERES
466,827,000 ( BB XN F : H ¥
488,816,000 ) MR ELEHERE - TS T
REFHEBRES® - #E%196,669,0007T K
SERIRE R RN - ARANEBETE
AR 16,226000m 2 FHR(ZEEBREFE  E
M5 734,000 BRI ——EHE - Hih
HEFETERRAS

REHER  FHRBXERTNHABRERL
14,780,000 (B FEAEFE: EY
16,409,0007T) « X ERTHHEBHZHE
o BWT SIS0 HERRABEERKS
B ZaNEESSERET AR EREN
ST EERNRERERAPEYR  HES
MEABEEHEEE -

(R T E G B R A B 2 B CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED)
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33 Business and Geographical Segments
Business segments
For management purposes, the Group is organised into three
divisions. These divisions are the basis an which the Group

reports its primary segment information. HAE .

Segment information about these businesses is presented ERSFEERFHWT -
below.

Revenue and results W2t R 3 K

Year ended 31st March 2007 BEEZ-QRLtF=A=1+—-HiLEE

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations
FRERER EF Fil-F
Computer and
information
Food and Investments communication
beverages in securities technology Total
) RE R &R .
BELE BHEE &
HK$000 HK$000 HKS$*000 HK$"000
HBET R AT BETR BETR
Revenue I 2% 250,076 9,831 491,654 751,561
Resulis E3
Segment results SHER 14,909 17,020 10,942 42,87
Unallocated corporate expenses FARATEMH (4,054)
Unallocated corporate income FALATRA 486
interest income el A 1,383
Share of results of associates MR ERREE 955 - - 955
Finance costs BEER (5,118)
Profit before taxation BEHAN 36,523
Income tax expenses GIRCE R {2,862}
Profit for the year FEH 33,661
Year ended 31st March 2006 BE_ZRARF=R=+—BLLEE
Discontinued
Continuing cperations operations
HEZEER HRABEED
Computer and
information
Food and Investments  cammunication
beverages in securities technology Total
. EERAH R
g4 EHEE R At
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BETR ERTR BT EETR
Revenue Uy 2 176,464 8,954 545,412 733,835
Results X
Segment results DR¥ER 18,794 5,734 18,352 47,880
Unallocated corporate expenses AoEOCE %M {(5611)
Unallocated corporate income AOELARA 5,812
Interest income sl A §,653
Finance costs HEER (3,906)
Profit before taxation BRmaf 40,828
Income tax expenses HERIL (3,862)
Profit for the year FEAT 36,966

The Group has no inter-segment sales for the years ended

31st March 2006 and 2007.

(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HCLDINGS LIMITED R £ Z 2 # B § B 2 ﬁ.l)

BE_RTN
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{continued)

33 Business and Geographical Segments

Business segments {continued)

Assets and liabilities
At 31st March 2007

Assets

Segment assets

Interests in associates
Unallocated corparate assets

Total assets

Lizhilities
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corparate liabilities

Total liabilities

At 3tst March 2006

Assets
Segment assets
Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities

HE

SARE
AEBE LR S
AAELTHE

BHE

Al
ARRM
RKPELFNAR

Baf

BEZ
SHRE
FAREDAAE

REE

Al
FRAR
FARLTAM

Baf

33EBLME DT w

HREEHD (H)
RERAM

R-RBtLtE=ZA=+-—H

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations
HEERED FREBERS
Computer and
information
Food and Investments communication
beverages in securities technology Total
RER®&A
£ BERE ERNE 1 s
HK$'000 HX$'000 HK5'000 HK$'000
BYE TR A¥TR B®TR BYTR
318,557 180,097 171,479 670,133
62,092 - - 62,092
16,852
749,077
47,630 - 105,969 153,59¢
114,114
267,713
BoBBAFZA=+—8
Discontinued
Continuing gperations aperations
BEQEER EBNORER
Computer and
information
Food and Investments  communication
beverages in securities technology Total
_ TERAR
g BHERA AHMBR h
HK$'000 HX$°000 HK$'000 _HKS'UOO
BETR BRI B¥Ta BT
270,069 158,950 183,557 612,576
18,256
630,832
17,878 - 74,937 92,815
126,741
219,556

(niﬁﬁfaﬁﬁmﬂacmmuen

PACIFIC HOLDINGS lIMlTED)
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33 Business and Geographical Segments

{continued)

Business segments (continued)

Other information
Year ended 31st March 2007

Capital expenditure

Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments

Impairment losses on
available-for-sale investments

Net (gains)/losses on disposals of
property, plant and equipment

Write-down of invantories to
net realisable value

Provision for impairment of
receivables

Year ended 31st March 2006

Capital expenditure

Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments

Impairment losses on
available-for-sale investments

Net inssesf(gains) on disposals of
property, plant and equipment

Write-down of inventories to
net realisable value

Written back of provision for
impairment of receivables

AL
g
BEEAERE

- E
HHENEE
HESA
LEME BERREHZ
(rai) /848
REFRETER
A
ERRBAE

B#

HEEHR

hE

HtEARE

B®
qHEMEE2
HEHE
LENE EBERREHKZ
ER/ (W) 38
RETHEURE
HE
EUFEREER
B &

33 ¥R LIS S E @

BREEHT (5K
Et @8
Hz_2RtF=A=+—-HLEFE

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations
BAEEER FHAEREE
Computer and
information
Food and Investments communication
beverages in securities technology Total
RERAA
L1 BERE BAREK &t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E¥Tn BRTR EETR AYTL
45,656 - 975 45,631
17.352 - 1,800 19,152
- - 184 184
- 1,473 - 1,473
151 - {8) 143
- - 2,432 2,432
- - 12 12
BE_FESNFZA=ZT—EBILEE
Discontinuved
Continuing operations operations
FREBEHE ERBAEEE
Computer and
information
Food and Investments  communication
beverages in securities technology Total
_ EBRAR
314 aHRE AR K &&t
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$°000 HK$'000
EETT ERTR HEHFT E¥TT
41,976 - 686 42,662
10,568 24 1,829 12,421
- - 251 251
- 2,466 - 2,466
686 - (1,037} (351}
- - 1,000 1,000
- - {1,983) (1,983)

CCHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED H = Z T 2 R & B
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33 Business and Geographical Segments BEBRMESEw

(continued)

Geographical segments RitBEHI
The Group's operations in food and beverages business are FRMEEsANERREE - HINERP
carried out in Hong Kong, Singapore and Mainland China BAiEir - MBERAMERERERR
whereas its operations in computer and information F& ZERTPREANEF - BHREEE
communication technology business are carried out in Hong RESEE - UTAFEERHBEBH S Z K
Kong, Thailand and Mainland China. The trading of 2T :

investments in securities are carried cut in Hong Kong. The
following is an analysis of the Group’'s revenue by

geographical market:

Revenue by geographical market

EHBETEHI Wil
2007 2006
ZRQLE ZHEXREF
HKS$'000 % HK$'000 %
BYTR BT
Hong Kong & 647,997 86 649,439 88
Thailand FH 72,764 10 65,826
Singapore hng 23,642 3 15,730
Mainland China & A ik 7,158 1 2,840 1
751,561 100 733,835 100
The follewing is an analysis of the carrying amounts of THEAEMEMBEDN Sz BEEREE
segment assets and capital expenditure analysed by RAXRIWZ 04 -

geographical area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amounts of

segment assets Capital expenditure
SRRERETE HANH
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZROLEF FTRRE ZR"tLEFE _FIAF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK3'000

BAETR EETR BMTR BETT

Hong Kong & E 673,447 558,891 34,300 36,598
Thailand E-37 52,513 51,977 67 158
Singapore i 8,780 9,307 3,375 3,150
Mainland China th H i 14,337 10,657 8,889 2,756

749,077 630,832 46,631 42,662

(ﬁ T Z E E R H R 2 8 CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED)
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34 Emoluments of Directors and Senior MEERGHRERBAB Y

Management [k
Directors’ emofuments ExMe
Emoluments paid and payable to the Directors of the Company EREERELAESoHEOT

are as follows:

2007
—getHF
Retirement
Salaries benefit
Directors’ and other scheme
fees benefits contribution Total
BER RUEEN
EBES RiER - REFA &3

HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000
mWT BYT R B®T R BWTR

Executive Director: WITES .
Lily Chow IHEIE| - 1,212 91 1.303
Independent BWYUFEHITES

Non-Executive Director:
Shinichi Yonehara HKERE— 120 - - 120
Wu King Cheang LR 120 - - 120
Kwong Man Sing BxE 120 - - 120

360 1,212 M 1,663

(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED H + 35 E #%# B 5 R 2 a)
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34 Emoluments of Directors and Senior BAESREREEABY
I\/Ianagement (continued) @H ﬁ (£1)
Directors’ emoluments (continued) ESaME (I
2006
ZBEARE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
Directors’ and other scheme
fees benefits  contribution Total
ek BRER
gk EfER BRIETN &t
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000

YT AWTRT E® T BETT

Executive Director: HMITESE

Lily Chow ) ¥ %0 - 1,212 9 1,303

Independent BYEHRITHS

Non-Executive Director:

Shinichi Yonehara SKEE— 120 - - 120

Wu King Cheong S 120 - - 120

Kwong Man Sing B2 120 - - 120
360 1,212 91 1,663

Apart from the directors’ emoluments disclosed above, Dr BUEER-2BEEME  RARHEEBERTN

Chow Yei Ching, Mr Fung Pak Kwan, Mr Kuok Hoi Sang, Mr i+ - Sk E - BIEAERE - BRIE

Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Mr Kan Ka Hon, Directors of the RERMREBEE YEAEDARERARSB

Company did not receive directors’ emoluments from the DEUDMEME (ZSBRE: &) -

Company {2006: Nil) and its subsidiaries.

(R + E 2 E KR BB 2 B CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMI\'F_D)
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34 Emoluments of Directors and Senior MEERRAERAER

Management (continued)

Senior managements’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included one (2006: one)
director, details of whose emoluments are set out above. The
emoluments paid to the remaining four (2006: four) highest

paid individuals for both years are as {ollows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & - 2HERHEMAER
Performance-based bonus FRATEL
Contribution to retirement schemes EWEME B

The emoluments of the four highest paid individuals fall within
the following bands:

(1
BEREIAAME
FEESOHOLBALERE-—R(ZBEN
T -R)NE - EEIHESBCBIND
E-2HFHRTHE(CFERF @A R

BEAIREREEZH:2 R
2007 2006
—eRtHE ZEERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
HRTR EETR
4,074 3,804
697 349
253 158
5,024 4,311

ENEREFATTESEHSBTHE
Al

2007 2006

—eRtE “ERXRE

Nil - HK$1,000,000 & — #%1,000,0007 2 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 FE%1,000,0017% — #%1,500,000T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 # % 1,500,00175C — #%2,000,0007C - 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 % 2,000,0017C — HE%2,500,0007C 1 -
4 4

(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED H + Z E 2 B 7 B @ ﬁ])
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35 Charge on Assets
At 31st March 2007, certain properties with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$8,362,000 (2006: HK$7,605,000) were
mortgaged to secure general banking facilities granted te an

overseas subsidiary.

36 Contingent Liabilities
The Company has provided guarantees to support banking
facilities of up to HK$155,419,000 (2006: HK$102,900,000)

granted to wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

37 Capital Commitment

At 31st March 2007, the Group has committed to acquire
the remaining 51% of the issued share capital of its associate
company, SEL from Sinochina Pacific Limited, an independent
third party. After that acguisition, SEL will become wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group. The consideration is based
on the forthcoming results performance of SEL and its
subsidiaries and associates for the year ending 31st December
2008. The aggregate considerétion including the purchase
price paid for the 49% issued share capital of SEL shall not
exceed HK$200 million.

38 Operating Leases
The Group as lessee
The Group had future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of premises
which fall due as follows:

Within one year A—
in the second o fifth year inclusive F-z=

& E
R-FBLF=ZAZ+—R -  ETRERE
BR300 (_RFAF B
7,605,0007T) 2 M EIER - BAERHEE B
EAMBARUME—BBITRE -

FREE
FRFICHHEZAKBLRANETEEE%
155,419,000 {—FE~F : &%
102,900,000 ) Z |ITR AR 4L HBF -

BN EHE
RIBFLE-ZAZ+—H 28EEAH
i — & 3% 3 £ = F Sinochina Pacific Limited
WHENEEEQTSHS TS 1%z BITR
Ao WBETERTE - SELEER AREE R EHE
DR) e WRE A TR BRSELR LM R 1 B R Bt
BRRRE_FERNEI_A=+—BLLF
Bz RHARBMIME - RN (21E5EL49%
ZRBETERICHZBEOR) B THRIAR
¥£200,000,0007T *

SEMHEE

THamERERAA
BERTASRORERREZ T TRIEY
FUHEBH  AMEMAXTRKEERE N
T

2007 2006
—RRtF —REREF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BMTR BRI
58,249 51,269
55,228 63,969
113,477 115,238

(Hiﬁﬂlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

® CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS iIMITED)
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38 Operating Leases «ontinued)

The Group as lessee (continued)
Operating leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease

term ranging from one to five years.

The above lease commitments only include commitments for
basic rentals, and do not include commitments for additional
rental payable (contingent rents), if any, which are to be
determined generally by applying pre-determined percentages
to future sales less the basic rentals of the respective leases,
s0 it is not possible to determine in advance the amount of

such additional rentals.

The Group as lessor

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s investment property
was rented out under opetating leases for a period of three
years. The future minimum fease payments receivable by the
Group under non-cancellable operating leases for each of

the foltawing pericds are as follows:

Within one year R—FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ERFR

38

(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLRINGS LIMITED B =+ ¥ & £ 1 517 B

o

D

EEMAE w
SEMAEREEA )
BEARANEHEST  ES 2 TETHME
ASA—SE%S -

tRHEEREERRERESRE TR
ERsr A S RRRE) (A 25K -
FRERNEEMERRRHEEIHERES
IbREEE s AFHSEE B THESE
REETHEMHEZNE -

FEMELEEA

REEA - AHEAEREDENEEEHR
bR AM=F - EETIHEZEEY
Hey FEERTH BB WER BEEE
BEKEMAT

2007 2006
—8RtE ZRBNF
HK$'000 HK$"000
BET R BT
461 438

422 840

883 1,278
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39 Share Option Schemes

The Company’s share option scheme (the "Scheme”} was
adopted by the shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed
on 20th September 2002 for the primary purpose of providing
the participants with the opportunity to acquire groprietary
interests in the Company and to encourage participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. The Scheme will expire on 19th September 2012.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at the date of shareholders’ approval of the Scheme
(the "Scheme Mandate Limit”) or, if such 10% limit is
refreshed, at the date of shareholders’ approval of the renewal
of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum aggregate
number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes, must not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue from time to time. The number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in any
one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company then in issue, without prior approval from the
Company's and CIHL's shareholders. Each grant of options
to any director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
must be approved by independent non-executive directors of
the Company and C!HL. Where any grant of options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director or any of their respective associates would result in
the shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options already granted and to be granted in
excess of 0.1% of the Company's issued share capital and
with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 in the t2-month
period up to the date of such grant must be approved in
advance by the Company's and CIHL's shareholders.

39

B8 A #E 5T &

A Z MO (D)) R A2
—EAAS+ERBZRRRAG IS
TEANNMSAEHRAADLBASAT
2N YRMERENERARLDRA
B2 MEHSASH - #HSARNRS
BT - BHBBRST ZFAA
PYLTT

WA D o b B B A B H 22 T AR A R
HREBETEERADASRITRONBE]
R B 10% ([ FEERE]) - &
REBEHEZADEERBARMZI0%R
HEREFEA2RE - B RBAYRITE
CHREESEHTEMBITIHESHRMA
B-THRARRRTHERTZRG
30% « REFAFTLETERBERZ Bait
A R R — @ F R TEAERA L2
BERGHMETREEAEHEQTNERHTZ
1% - BPEFET - TRERNETE
BEzG-ABRREHEETLARALTE
BB IEMITIE RIS - MEAEERR
BRI FRTEHREREESaEARERAL
EHZBERIE SUBEEREANLE+TZ
MAMBMATESH R HIERE BRI
MBETEBFRIIZALARBELLT LA
CEFTRAIRREBEUNBREN
5,000,0007 - HEABEARETARRALHE
2R EGE AR -

Giﬁﬁ&

RA R 2

B CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS lIMITED)
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39 Share Option Schemes (continued)

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days from the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during the effective period of the Scheme to be
notified by the board of directors which shall not be later
than 10 years from the date of grant. The exercise price is
determined by the Directors of the Company, and will not be
less than the highest of the closing price of the Company’s
share on the date of grant, the average closing price of the
share on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, and the nominal

value.

No aptions have been granted under the Scheme during the
year (2006: Nil),

40 Retirement Benefits

The Group has established various retirement bénefit schemes
for the benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas. In
Hong Kong, the Group participates in both a defined
contribution scheme which is registered under the
Cccupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO
Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme {the “MPF
Scheme”} established under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets ¢f the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. Employees who were members of the
ORSO Scheme prior 10 the establishment of the MPF Scheme
were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or
switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees
joining the Group on or after 1st December 2C00 are required
10 join the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5%
of the relevant payroll costs at a maximum of HK$1,000 per
month to the Scheme. The ORSQO Scheme is funded by
monthly contributions from both employees and the Group
at rates ranging from 5% to 7.5% of the employee’s basic
salary, depending on the length of service with the Group.

(CHEVA{IER PACIFIC HOLIDINGS LIMITED H + Z % 2 B # B

30 MR S o

BEARREREHEN =T HANMERM
PRXNEB ITUERRABET ZBARE -
BAET IR R IR DI R E
BAEERETE HEIRRGRARE
HAE  FHERTGEABHA BB T
FoTREAEF AR ZHEMLRE - H
T RELERGAE LA RER AR
Wl EALFRORRERLEAANABER
SEEBRTMNFHORTORIOAMGZ
HE WEEsERE-

FEERNGERBZHBRLRERE (=T
BRE | o

AR AR A
FROAREETERFMERRI ZHREKE
Netdl - RER  SERERATRIAZE
(BERRFHBEMDEH 2B BURTE
(MEARNSHNORER-_SFFFE+_A
ZEMME L MEBIDR LZBHELTS
O (MEIENeso)) - rHEEEm
BESH UAERAORAER - W&
BRORENSHNATHGR —REEE
REERBLMSHAURBRGHEBTES
H-FMBER_FEFEET_A-BRRBEA
BZFED ARSRBENEE -

BARS B QY - A ME ) AR
FEEAMALNS%REA LEABYE

1000753 - RAFEHE - RARSEMD |
HEEEHNS%ETSHAHREA - BTE f
REHMLT -
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40 Retirement Benefits (continued)

41
(a)

Arrangements for staff retirement benefits of overseas
employees vary from country to country and are made in

accordance with local regulations and customs.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSQ Scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited
contributions. At 31st March 2007, the total amount of
forfeited contributions, which arose upon employees leaving
the ORSO Scheme and which are available to reduce the
contributions payable in future years, was HK$60,000 (2006:
HK$59,000}. The amount of forfeited contributions utilised
in this manner during the year was HK$301,000 (2006:
HK$201,000). At 31st March 2007, contributions of
HK$164,000 (2006: HK$174,000) due in respect of the
reporting period were paid over to the ORSO Scheme in Aprit
2007.

Related Party Transactions

Transactions with related parties

The following is a summary of significant related party
transactions which were carried out in the normal course of

business:

(i On 28th March 2006, the Company renewed the
management agreement with Chevalier (HK) Limited
("CHKL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CIHL, for the
provision of company secretarial, accounting, electronic
data processing, personnel and property management
services by CHKL to the Group in respect of the year
ended 21st March 2007 at a management fee calculated
at the rate of 0.5% of the annual revenue of the Group
excluding those of its overseas subsidiaries. Management
fees paid to CHXL during the year under this agreement
amounted to HK$3,569,000 (2006: HK$4,005,000).

{it During the year, the Group sold computer equipment
and business machines and provided maintenance
services to wholly-owned subsidiaries of CIHL totalling
HK$12,976,000 (2006: HK$10,103,000).

40 R B o
SHMERZ O TRARAZHEETRER
FEHRE - RIS Bk BT B
tﬂ o

AHEH MR ERERRNAE AR ETEE
Bz EHSin - AR EBE NIRRT AR
2A-RISBLF=ZA=Z+—B - B2H
SHMAARBRAEERATAENRARSE
&R R 2 3 e 3R AR B R 8 81 60,0007
{(ZBE}E  A%S59,000m) « RAEFFED
BB AEEI0,00T (ZRERE B
#201,000T) - R_BRLF=ZA=+—
B - EsRHAR BRI AR 164,000 (=
BRAE  B¥ITI000T)IER_RELF
MAMARE N E -

MEBEALRS

() HERBALZES
RFAR-RERRGBEAAERBAL
T2 BE

(i) R-SEREZA=Z+NAD KodR
E+BAE2ENB2ARL(EBER
LA([HLHED EEMSTEIRRE
BET HHEIEFERBE-STLE
TA=+—aLtEFEER - RELFAR
%G5 ETHERE- ABRWDE
EEBETAEM - BRZBRN - &x
HE GEINHR D AR AEE2FR
B20s%HFHLEREABERWY
BH-xEEA - REEHEBRSHT
B+-&HE,BERAEN 3,569,000
(ZFR/NF : #E%¥4,0050007) °

(il MEFER FREmMELIEMZEZRE
VPR PR SRRy SRS E R R e g
i ER R M S & HE % 12,976,000 (=
FRE - EK10,103,0007T) ©

(ﬁ T S T BFE R EH M L B CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED)
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41 Related Party Transactions iontinued) M BHEEATRZ o0
(a} Transactions with related parties (continued) (a) AREBEATZXE ()

(iiiy During the year, the Group paid rent of HK$4,693,000 iy RAFEA FHREMHETEOEZ
(2006: HK$4,305,000), which was determined with EaB%4,693,000 (ZFFAF B
reference 1o market rental, to wholly-owned subsidiaries %4,305,000L) THRALTEBRZAES
of CIHL for the use of their premises by the Group. ZHBLT  EASEEFERREETY

B -

(v) The Group made additional advances totalling (ivi RAFEARN ZHHEEEMNMEREE
HK$280,000 (2006: HK$1,336,000) to an associate 280000 (T FARF B E
during the year. Full provision of HK$280,000 (2006: 1,366,000T) T—MME RE - BRZF
HK$1,336,000) was made on the outstanding amount FLE=ZA=+—HZKIISHEEE
due at 31st March 2007. 280,000 (Z BB N E - B ¥

1,336,000} EfEH 2 HBE -

(v} The remuneration of the directors and senior (v} MREFEX ZHCERSBTEARZ
management during the year was disclosed in note 34. HEE R IR EE -
(b) Transactions/balances with subsidiaries (b) RHBATZXE &8
The Company
PN
2007 2006
—e9tEF 3 S 3
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Transactions with subsidiaries BHBLAAZXS
Management {ee charged to BHHRA®Z
subsidiaries EFIER 7,782 8,452
Balances with subsidiaries BHBLRZ B
Amounts due from subsidiaries LA X EN L 277,912 281,327
Amounts due to subsidiaries i AR A NG E N 43,918 38,650

(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED R + F &2 # K & @ 2 ﬁ])
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42 Events After Balance Sheet Date

{a)

(k)

{c)

(d)

Cn 2nd May 2007, the disposal of the Company’s
subsidiaries and assets and liabilities in relation to the
computer and information communication technology
business to CIHL. The consideration is determined by

reference to their net asset value.

Cn 2nd May 2007, the name of the Company is changed
from "Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited” to “Chevalier
Pacific Holdings Limited” upon the approval of the

special resolution in the SGM.

On 16th May 2007, the Company issued 25,384,146
new shares at a subscription price of HK$3.70 per share.
The net proceeds from the issue of new shares of
approximately HK$91,600,000 will be used by the Group
for the purpose of working capital.

On 31st May 2007, Chevalier Pacific Catering
Management (Beijing) Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a Memarandum
of Agreement with Dayou Digital Resources Limited X
FRFARERIML LA
independent third party, in relation to (a) the provision

("Dayou Digital”}, an

of management services in food and beverages business
to Dayou Digital and/or its related companies in
Maintand China; (b) supply of coffee (and related
beverages), coffee beans, coffee machines to Dayou
Digital and/or its related companies in Mainland China;
(¢) the possibility of investing into the Company's existing
Mainland China subsidiary by Dayou Digital and/for its
related companies, for the expansion of the Company’s
coffee business in Mainland China; and (d) the possibility
of forming a 50:50 joint venture with Dayou Digital
and/or its related companies for promoting coffee retail
and coffee solutions in Mainland China ("Possible
Transactions”}. As at the date of the approval of these
financial statements, the Group is still in discussion with
Dayou Digital on the terms and conditions of the Possible
Transactions and no agreement has been reached.

42 HEE RigEIR
(a) R-ZBV|/LERTAZ-L - MELEEL
ERBERAMBAEEREMZE
ARZHBLARAENAMN  RAD
SEHAESHENE -

R-RB+ERA-E RRERIA
FrRBBIRERE - ELRZEIE
HIHtTHEEREBRATIERAIE
TRGERERAR -

(e}

RIBBRLFHERA+AI - K2FUE
BRGEEIJOT I REMET
25,384,146 M A {5 - WITHRG 2P
19 30 TRE 88 4058 %5 91,600,0007T 48 B &
HUAEREES -

{c)

M_FZ2LFHERA=+—R Fosz
2HMBRAETATRARER G
RERLIRBUE=ZAABRTA
ReEREFLA(KERFNITIFHE
% BeReEXEBFR/ REME
KA EAL2 R RERRHAEEE
BoOEFEABEENFLEHER
B 0T - BB TAERFR/E
EMBAR ORFARFR/AHBS
REAERARARIREEPEAL
ZHEBRE - FRERALTETEA
2 WBER RAOXERFR/EE
Mo a A EADRRZS0: 502
BERE WERETEARBZWER
GENFEAR(TEETZER]) « B
HERHBEERAH R
HITZZDERERFRABHTET
B MARKERIDE -

{d)

(ﬁ + 32 @m 2 R A M & B CHEVALIER PACIFIC

HOLDINGS LIMITED)
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43 Principal Subsidiaries

Place or country
of incorpozation
or registration/

Name of company gperation
L REY

RREE EAHE

Chevalier (Biotech) Limitad Hong Kong

EE(EHE EREAT &R

Chevalier iTech Limited Hong Kong
(Change of name on 29th May 2007 L
to Chevalier Pacific Limited)

ETHRERAT
(RoFPEFTAZTAA
HEEATRSHERAT)

Chevalier iTech Thai Limited Thailznd
frote 2) e
{HE2)

Chevalier iTech Services Limited Hong Kong

EIHHEIERRAR 3

Chevalrer (Network Solutions) Hong Keng
Limited R

Ei(BBEAERRA

Chevalier Network Sofutions Thailand
Thai Limited B

Chevalier (0A) Holdings Limited Hong Keng

AT(AEER) EBARLH i

Class of
shares

BHRM

Crdinary
ER

Ordinary
g

Ordinary
EA
Preference

B

Ordinary
£}

Ordinary
L1}

Ordinary
L

Ordinary
Ta

Issued and paid
up share capitalf
registered capital

EETR&R
B3/ ARE

HK$2
BT

HK$200,000,000
20€,000,000% 7T

BAKT18,380,000
18,980,000% ik
BANT1,020,000

1,20,006% i

HK$2
ER

HK$2
BT

BAHTI 5,000,000
15,000,000% §

EK$31,600,000
31,600,000 ¢

(CHEVAL!ER PACIFIC HOIDINGS LIWMITED R = Z 5 2 B &8 B & ﬁ)

Ng. of shares

REABE

£00,000,000

189,800
10,200

150,000

316,000,000

43 F EHTE R 8]

Eifective percentage
of issued share

capital/registerad
capital held by
the Company
Directly  Indirectly
AREHE
R E5) 8%
ERBERE
R B
% %
Gh¥ BR®
- 100
- 100
100 -
100 -
- 100
- 100
100 -
100 -

Principal activities

1EER

Investment holding

RELR

Investment holding
1§ g

Trading of computer
and business
ERAEE
AERE

Trading and
servicing of
computer and
business machines
RELERBE
RALEE

Network systems and
sclution services
ARERE
HEER

Trading of
telecommunication
equipment
ARG

lnvestment holding

g
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43 Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Name of company

RELE

Chavalier {0A) Limited
K (BEEL) HRAR

Chevalier Pacific Catering
Management (Befjing)
Company Limited (nate 1}

ATAFHERERR)
FRE®FED

Chevalier (Satellink) Limited
RE(FRARIARLE

Lucky Fine Limited
REHRRAF

Pacific Caffee Company Limited

Facific Coffee Company (5}
Pte Lid

Place or country
of incorparation

or registration/  Class of

operation shares
i/ BERY

gH%  BOER

Hong Kong  Ordinary

E# g8

Mainland China Not

“@RHE  applicable

FHR

Hong Kong  Ordinary

&R i

Heng Kong  Ordinary

£ 28

Hong Kong  Ordinary

&# 53

Singapore  Crdinary

il @

Issued and paid
up share capital/
registerad capital

EHTRAR
BE/ERRE

HK$100,000
100,000% 1

1J54434,000
L34,000E T

HK1365,002
365,000 &

HK$2
Litw

HK$77,355
71,3558

§$100,000
100,000 M

No. of shares

RiBE

100,000

Not applicable
R

365,002

77,355

100,000

43 FEMRB T e

Effective percentage
of issued share
capitaliregistered
capital held by
the Company
Directly  Indirectly
ERRHH
ERFRAE
ERkals
Bk ik
% %
ik ANE

- 100

Pringipal activities

3:2 3.1

Trading of computer
and office
equipment and
provision of repair
and maintenance
services
RREHAE
REAS
BEERE

Operation of
coffee shops
BELURE

Instaflation of
satellite antennae
KREE
BRAR

Property investment

hE&#

Tradig of coffee
products, operation
of coffee shops
and provision of
maintenanca
services
WHERES
-HRUBER
RELBEREHRE

Qperation of
coffee shops
geuds

(n + 2 T B KR A MR A2 A CHEVALIER PACIFIC

HOLDINGS lIMITED)
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43 Principal Subsidiaries «ontinued) 43 T B2 B A Rl e

Effective percentage
of issued share

Place or countey capitaliregistered
of incorporation lssued and paid capital held by
or registratio/  Class of up share capital/ the Company
Name of company operation shares registered capital No. of shares Directly  indirectly Principal activities
FLERE
ERTRAY
Bl /8505 BEARER BRRERE
pEEL ZR%  ROBH RE/BHERA miga Jit Bt TEER
% %
EZ® Bh&
Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited British Virgin ~ Ordinary U5$40,034 400,337 - 100 Investment holding
Islands &8 40,0455 RAKR
13
- $:8:44)
PCC Investment Limited Hong Keng  Ordinary HKSZ 2 - 100 Operation of
&% 3] MR coffee shops
BEIRE
PCC Investment (I} Limited Hong Kong  Ordinary HK$2Z 2 - 100 Operation of
E# 24 AR coffes shops
BERRE
Sup Aswin Limited Thailand  Ordinary BAHT15,000,000 150,000 100 - Property investment
#3 1| 15,000,000% i iR
EHRRER(EE)ERAR Mainland China Not 1S$140,000 Not applicable - 100 Operation of
frote 1) wEAAM  applicable 140,000% T8R coffee shops
(fiit1) TiER SERSE
BHELTHETIEERAA Mainland China Not HK$5,000,000 Not applicable - 100 Maintanance
{nate 1) wBAR  applicable 5,000,0007 7T TEH services
{git1) THR BERE
Notes: BixE -
{1) Established in the Mainland China as wholly foreign owned 1) KA 2ECERYPBRAMA -
enterprise.
(2) Preference shares are 10% non-cumuiative and every four 2) HATZELEBRNDI0O%TAREREEE
preference shares of this company carry one vote. R —RRE -
. . Y =
44 Comparative Figures 44 L B F
Certain of the comparative figures have been reclassified to ETHERFEEFUGEEFTEZEY -
conform to the current year's presentation.

1
(CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED R + T T B B & K 2 ’5‘]) END




